
Racing Industry Inquiry   1           
22 February 2011   
Merrill Corporation 
 

 

MERRILL CORPORATION 
Level 1, Manpower House, 33-35 Ainslie Avenue, CANBERRA ACT 2600                  ABN 85 120 213 381 
Telephone: (02) 6230 4110          Fax: (02) 6230 4114 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 
 
 
INDEPENDENT COMPETITION and 
REGULATORY COMMISSION  
OF THE 
AUSTRALIAN CAPITAL TERRITORY 
 
 
 
 
MR PAUL BAXTER, CHAIR 
 
 
 
 
INVESTIGATION INTO THE ACT RACING INDUSTRY 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
held at 
 
CANBERRA 
 
9.39 AM, TUESDAY, 22 FEBRUARY 2011 
 



Racing Industry Inquiry              
22 February 2011    
Merrill Corporation 

2 

SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Well, can I welcome everyone to the public 
hearings into the Commission’s Investigation into the ACT racing 
industry.  This public hearing is called in response to a draft report that 
was issued by the Commission back in December and on which public 
submissions are requested by no later than 1 March with a report to be a 5 
released finally to government by the middle of April.   
 
The public hearing today will be run along the following lines.  Certain 
persons or groups have made requests to appear before the Commission as 
part of the public hearing and the agenda is set out in material that you’ll 10 
find, if you wish to have a copy, on the back table where you’ll find not 
only copies of the agenda but copies of submissions received to date, the 
draft report itself and also a sheet up there that allows you to pop your 
name and email address or postal address if you wish us to forward 
directly to you copies of the final report, so if you’re not already on our 15 
mailing list. 
 
The process that we will use today will be one where each of the groups or 
individuals that have been identified as witnesses and have asked to be 
regarded as witnesses will be invited to make a presentation.  That 20 
presentation will then be followed by questions which the Commission, 
being myself as Senior Commissioner, will raise or further discussion that 
will follow on from those particular matters.  It is not a public forum, so 
while I welcome people who are here to observed and possibly participate 
as witnesses at some stage themselves, it is not a public forum whereby 25 
people can make comments or interjections from the floor.  So I request 
that you refrain from that, but there will be plenty of opportunity, I have 
got no doubt, for people to bring forward their comments to the 
Commission in the normal process, and even opportunity for people to 
talk over tea or coffee outside as required.  The program is as set out.  30 
We’ll have a break at around about 11 o’clock and then we’ll break for 
lunch at about 1 o’clock.  It is anticipated at this stage that the agenda will 
run through till about 3.30 or so this afternoon, but again details are on 
that agenda which is available up on the back table.   
 35 
So with that brief introduction can I welcome then this morning 
representatives from the Canberra Racing Club, being Mr Tim Olive who 
is Chairman of the Canberra Racing Club, Mr Peter Stubbs as Chief 
Executive and welcome you here today and invite you to, first of all, 
introduce yourself, if you wouldn’t mind, for the purposes of the tape and 40 
then move into a presentation and cover the points that you wish to.  So 
thank you. 
 
MR OLIVE:  Okay, thank you, Paul.  My name is Tim Olive and I’m the 
Chairman of the Canberra Racing Club. 45 
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MR STUBBS:  Thank you, Senior Commissioner.  I’m Peter Stubbs, I’m 
the Chief Executive of the Canberra Racing Club. 
 
MR OLIVE:  Okay, thank you, Senior Commissioner, for the opportunity 
to address the ICRC this morning.  It’s a very important time in the future 5 
in the history of the Canberra racing industry, a pivotal time in the funding 
arrangements and the wagering landscape.  So the Canberra Racing Club 
is very keen to work with the ACT Government to navigate this landscape 
in an effective way and come out with a funding model which is 
sustainable into the future.   10 
 
Okay, I guess we’ll just start off by outlining the structure of our 
presentation.  We’ll start off by looking at the current funding 
arrangements relative to the historical funding arrangements, and look at a 
few of the component parts of that.  We’ll touch briefly on the economic 15 
contribution provided by the ACT racing industry.  We’ll explore the 
important link between racing and wagering, and talk about that in a little 
bit more detail.  We’ll offer our views on an appropriate system of product 
payments which is specifically with the context of this review is about 
Race Fields Legislation.   20 
 
And we’ll also talk about the significant cultural benefits of the racing 
industry, talk about some options with respect to the future funding of the 
industry and we’ll then go on to talk about some issues across the three 
Codes which were referred to in the report, specifically the basis of the 25 
split-up of the finding across the Codes and provide the Canberra Racing 
Club’s view on the three Codes governance suggestions that were made in 
the draft report. 
 
Okay, this slide shows a summary over the last six years of the funding 30 
provided by either ACTTAB or the ACT Government in 2010/2011.  So 
really this is the funding provided by government or government 
controlled entities, and the model that was in place from 2005/2006 to 
2009/2010 was the ACTTAB model, whereby the industry received a total 
of 4½ per cent of total turnover on the ACTTAB and, as you can see there, 35 
that has varied across that period.  In 2010/2011 the funding moved to a 
direct budget funding model and it’s $7.27 million.  So I’ll just point out a 
couple of things in relation to this trend.   
 
Really it’s the view of the Canberra Racing Club that the wagering 40 
landscape started to significantly change, you know, moving forward from 
2005/2006.  So if we take 2005/2006 as a normal year you can see that, 
even in nominal terms, the funding in both 2009/2010 and 2010/2011 is 
still below the level that was achieved six years ago.  I’ll just make one 
comment on the amount of the direct budget funding in 2010/2011.  It was 45 
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basically calculated to be the equivalent of the ACTTAB funding that was 
received in 2009/2010.  The amount ended up being slightly different 
because I think the final result for ACTTAB in 2009/2010 was a little bit 
below the estimated result.  So the logic there was to replace the amount 
that was received by the industry through ACTTAB funding. 5 
 
What we’ve done here is we’ve added the amounts received from Race 
Fields Legislation and that’s the purple bars on top of the stacks for 
2009/2010 and 2010/2011.  And I guess just as a bit of background, Race 
Fields Legislation is a fee for product, or the provision of product, paid by 10 
commercial wagering operators across Australia.  They pay, in the case of 
the ACT, 10 per cent of gross revenue on all amounts wagered on 
Canberra racing products.  So that the two incremental purple bars on top 
of the stacks are amounts received from commercial wagering operators.  I 
think another point I’d like to make here is if we look at the trend across 15 
that period and use 2005/2006 as the base year of $7.57, if we were to 
adjust the amount for the time value of money and turn that into a real 
amount in 2010/2011 you would find that the real purchasing power of 
$7.57 from 2005/2006 in 2010/2011 would be about $8.7/8.8 million.   
 20 
So really it’s the view of the industry that Race Fields Legislation is not a 
new revenue source.  It’s certainly a new item but it is partial 
compensation for the industry, you know, to offset the reduction or 
erosion in TAB turnover that the introduction of corporate bookmakers 
has affected.  And up until the introduction of Race Fields Legislation, 25 
you know, they were essentially free riding, using the product, making 
significant profits and not actually contributing anything back to the 
industry.  So it’s really the view of the industry that that is a compensation 
for that market imperfection. 
 30 
Okay, we’ll talk a little bit more about the gentlemen’s agreement a little 
bit later on and it’s a concept that I think will be familiar to most people in 
this room.  Basically, just as background, the traditional funding model in 
Australian racing has been that the racing industry within each state and 
territory is funded by a percentage of turnover provided on the home 35 
based TAB.  So in the ACT that’s been, up until this current year, a 
percentage of turnover on ACTTAB is rebated back to the ACT racing 
industry.  And the gentlemen’s agreement has referred to the informal 
reciprocal arrangement whereby, by providing funding to your local 
industry, it entitled you to the use of product across the country. 40 
 
So essentially, in the racing industry there’s a key strategic partnership 
with the home based racing industry and the home based TAB.  As I said, 
in the ACT that’s ACT racing industry and ACTTAB.  So what we’ve 
done here is we’ve looked at the change in revenue trend for our key 45 
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strategic partner ACTTAB relative to other jurisdictions.  So again we’ve 
used that 2005/2006 as the base year, being pre the major changes in the 
wagering industry, and we’ve just used a nominal base point of 
100 percentage points.  And then across that period we’ve tracked 
turnover in nominal terms relative to, you know, that starting base point.  5 
And as you can see there, the ACTTAB’s turnover in 2009/2010, the most 
recently completed year, is 5 per cent down on that base period in nominal 
terms.  If we were to compare that to the real trend, I mean, change in the 
value of money over that time would be something like 115 per cent.   
 10 
So ACTTAB has suffered significantly from the changes in the wagering 
landscape.  If you look at its change in turnover relative to that of other 
jurisdictions, and the two closes jurisdictions to the ACT are obviously 
New South Wales and Victoria.  In New South Wales the TAB has 
performed a little better.  Their turnover in 2009/2010 is 105 per cent of 15 
what it was back in 2005/2006.  In Victoria it’s a little better again, it’s 
109 per cent of turnover as it was back in 2005/2006.  So you can see that 
based on turnover alone the ACT hasn’t been able to navigate the changes 
in the wagering landscape as effectively as other jurisdictions, and the 
implication of that has been a reduced funding base for the ACT racing 20 
industry which has significantly deteriorated our relative competitive 
position.  I guess I’d also point out if we were to overlay CPI over that 
period it would be something like 115 per cent.  So even the bigger state 
jurisdictions have been affected by the wagering landscape, but not quite 
to the same degree as the ACT. 25 
 
Okay, this slide’s a little bit busy, but we think it illustrates a point.  
Basically what we’ve done here the prize money is the key competitive 
driver in the racing industry and it dictates, you know, who attracts horses, 
who attracts owners, trainers, et cetera, and by attracting, you know, a 30 
good number of quality participants impacts on the wagering results.  So 
therefore the majority of races across the ACT and New South Wales are 
run for a standard rate of minimum prize money.  Okay, and I’ve used the 
comparison here of comparing Canberra prize money versus New South 
Wales Country and New South Wales Provincial. 35 
 
So if I start in 2005/2006 we can see here that Canberra prize money was 
about $12,000 relative to New South Wales Provincial, which was much 
higher than that, it’s about $12,000 plus there’s an item called Bob’s in 
New South Wales.  I guess for those who don’t have a racing background 40 
I’ll explain that briefly, but it’s an incentive that was introduced by the 
New South Wales racing industry to provide a loading for registered bred 
horses to provide an additional receipt of prize money on races where 
those horses were bred by a New South Wales based stallion.  So it’s a 
significant incentive and it’s provided a real boost to the New South 45 
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Wales racing industry.  The Canberra Racing Club has always tried to 
position ourselves to be, you know, competitive or equal to New South 
Wales provincial clubs, that’s centres such as really Wollongong, 
Newcastle, Gosford, et cetera.  I guess cities of similar economic and 
population size to the ACT. 5 
 
So you can see here, as we work across the trend, over on the far 
right-hand side in 2010/2011 the Canberra Racing Club has prize money 
of about $14,000.  New South Wales Provincial, their base prize money is 
now $16,000, so above the Canberra racing industry.  And then you add 10 
on top of that this BOBS [Breeder Owner Bonus Scheme] Bonus which 
takes, you know, the net possible receipt to $21,000.  In addition to that 
you can see there that New South Wales Country has improved 
significantly over that period as well.  You can see that in 2010/2011 
minimum prize money for TAB race meetings is $10,000 plus a $5,000 15 
BOBS Bonus on top of that.  So the Canberra racing industry’s 
competitive position as eroded significantly over that time period and 
that’s been as a direct consequence of the funding items identified in the 
previous slides. 
 20 
Okay, obviously a key item in this whole review is the economic 
contribution made by the ACT racing industry.  With the submissions to 
the initial report and the draft report there were a number of approaches to 
that valuation.  I guess, you know, looking from the Canberra Racing 
Club’s point of view, we disagree with the valuation that’s been included 25 
in the draft report by the ICRC.  We provided a number of valuations as 
part of initial submissions.  We’ve engaged economic consultancy firms, 
Access Economics and The Allen Consulting Group who will address the 
Commission later today.  I think it’s best that they handle the technical 
nature of those particular estimates, but just as an example The Allen 30 
Consulting Group have estimated that the economic contribution is 
$29 million in a direct sense, and $25 million in an indirect sense. 
 
MR STUBBS:  Thank you, Tim.  Senior Commissioner, I’d like to 
address the slide on the racing and wagering link point by point.  The first 35 
point here we talk about racing and wagering surviving in the same 
ecosystem and one cannot survive without the other.  An important 
element of this is the prize money and wagering are the two economic 
drivers of the racing industry.  Without one there is not the other.  It is the 
realisation or expectation of winning prize money that drives the whole 40 
industry.  The major source of revenue, almost 73 per cent, required to pay 
prize money at a level that will attract owners to the industry and 
encourage them to remain in the industry is derived from wagering. 
 
ICRC recognises the interdependence, however, takes a unique approach 45 
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of separating the two to form its valuation of the racing industry.  The 
ACT is not unique in a national sense of the ratio of wagering on local 
product and interstate product.  The ratio is similar in Tasmania and the 
Northern Territory and not dissimilar in South Australia.  In the third 
largest racing state Queensland, the turnover on the home state product is 5 
28 per cent.  The returns paid by Queensland TAB is 39 per commission 
on all wagering.  In 2010, the Queensland Government introduced tax 
relief which provided $80 million for infrastructure projects for 
Queensland Racing.  In fact, Victoria is the only net exporter of 
thoroughbred racing product in Australia. 10 
 
Moving on to the gentlemen’s agreement which we believe is still firmly 
in place across Australia, the ICRC view - and I refer to the draft report 
page 1 - that the gentlemen’s agreement began to break down and is 
breaking down is not a true reflection of what is actually occurring in 15 
Australia at the present time.  The TAB funding arrangements between the 
governments’ TABs and principal racing authorities in each state remain 
firmly in place.  Racing New South Wales have a 99-year agreement for 
the funding of racing with its government and Victoria has a similar 
long-term agreement, and similar varying arrangements are in place in 20 
other states.  In the ACT, there is still the link between wagering on 
ACTTAB, the government revenue and the racing industry funding.  It is 
only the words that have really changed from the Racing Development 
Fund to Budget funding.  The revenue flows remain the same. 
 25 
Race Field Legislation was introduced to combat betting exchange in 
corporate bookmakers.  Race Fields Legislation was enacted to capture 
revenue from a market, a new and developing market that was 
predominantly based in the Northern Territory from which the racing 
industry was not receiving a product fee.  Effectively, Race Field 30 
Legislation has been bolted onto the gentlemen’s agreement to ensure a 
fee for product is being paid by all wagering operators, which was not the 
case previous to Race Fields Legislation being introduced.  TABs are 
caught up in the payment of RFL on top of the traditional gentlemen’s 
agreement because of issues around constitutional issues, the ACCC 35 
requirements.  However, if all TABs only paid the equivalent amount as 
required under Race Fields Legislation at the current fees, then the whole 
racing industry would collapse. 
 
I’d like to move onto this slide and speak a little about the appropriate 40 
system of product payments, particularly Race Fields Legislation.  As we 
know in the ACT, the current arrangement for Race Fields Legislation is 
10 per cent of gross revenue.  I might just add a few points in relation to 
the introduction of that.  Prior to Race Fields Legislation being introduced 
in the ACT Canberra Racing Club had a number of discussions with 45 



Racing Industry Inquiry    PETER STUBBS  
22 February 2011    
Merrill Corporation 

8 

Government Ministers, Ministers’ advisers and Economics Branch of 
Treasury on the need to introduce Race Fields Legislation to attract 
revenue from operators wagering on our product who were not paying a 
fee.  Government acted and introduced a 10 per cent gross model.  At the 
time it appeared the overriding motivation of probably particularly 5 
Economic Branch was that a 10 per cent revenue gross model was to 
avoid possible litigation that the legislation may attract from corporate 
bookmakers.  In the climate at the time it was possibly a very good 
strategy. 
 10 
Moving onto the Racing New South Wales court case which I think 
everyone in this room is very familiar with, CRC believes that the result 
of the Racing New South Wales court case involving Sports Bet and 
Betfair will ultimately determine the model adopted in Australia, whether 
that is a state by state model or a national funding model.   15 
 
Turnover based model versus corporate bookmakers and TABs.  The 
Productivity Commission believes a gross revenue model will deliver 
better value to the wagering consumer.  It also believes it will deliver 
better value to the low margin operators.  From a racing industry point of 20 
view, it has been found that in the ACT that a number of corporate 
bookmakers licensed to bet on the ACT racing product, and who do trade 
on the product, do not pay any fee to the ACT racing industry, either 
because of losses incurred or they do not meet the $1.5 million threshold.  
Either way, the racing industry loses out.   25 
 
CRC does not support the view that price competition between wagering 
operators will have any obvious or actual effect on gate receipts, 
sponsorship, advertising, opportunities and venue hire opportunities, and 
believes this is a theoretical interpretation by ICRC of the Productivity 30 
Commission’s statement on this point.  And I refer to the Productivity 
Commission report 2010 chapter 16 page 39.  The ACT Government must 
react to changes to deliver the best outcome for the racing industry.  
Regardless of the arguments around the appropriate model for product 
payments it is crucial that the ACT Government quickly react to wagering 35 
industry changes and adopt a model that returns the maximum revenue to 
the racing industry. 
 
The ICRC in its draft report talks a little about culture.  We think culture 
is an important aspect of the overall racing industry in the ACT and I’d 40 
like to cover these points.  The ICRC talks about the effect on culture and 
the effect on attendances at race meetings.  This is another item where 
ICRC we believe needs to understand the relationship between 
attendances at what we might describe as people meetings and what could 
be described as industry turnover meetings.  In racing the culture is built 45 
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around feature races and race meetings such as the Black Opal Stakes and 
Canberra Cup, around good horses and good jockeys, and it is ultimately 
that attendance at feature race meetings which will drive the culture of 
racing in the ACT. 
 5 
Let me now just talk a little about the culture in off-course wagering.  
Off-course wagering is an element of racing that has developed over many 
years with the introduction of TAB operators, Sky Racing Television and 
now corporate bookmakers.  It has not impacted on the culture of racing.  
There is still significant interest in racing.  Feature race meetings are well 10 
attended and, in fact, off-course exposure has increased the overall 
audience.  The reference to developing electronic horse wagering games 
in the ICRC draft report, such as Trackside, to support an argument on the 
erosion of racing culture is ill-founded.  Trackside has had no impact on 
the culture of racing or attendances in the ACT.  In fact, ACTTAB’s 15 
Trackside is not performing well. 
 
The ACT racing cultural history is a long history, it has contributed to the 
social fabric and entertainment culture in the ACT.  There’s been some 
significant events over a long period of time and I’ll just run through a 20 
number of them.  In 1925, the first racing club was formed.  In 1926, the 
first running of the Canberra Cup.  1958 plans for a new racecourse at the 
current Thoroughbred Park site.  1971 the Canberra Racing Club 
introduced regular Sunday racing in Australia, the first Sunday racing.  
1972 Acton Green Stand constructed.  1973 the first running of the Black 25 
Opal Stakes.  1998 the Queen attends the Queen Elizabeth Stakes Race 
Meeting and opens the Queen Elizabeth Stand at Thoroughbred Park.  
1999 Catbird is the first horse to win the Black Opal Golden Slipper 
Stakes and, in fact, the only horse to achieve that double.  In 2001, 
Canberra Racing Club admitted as a principal club.  In 2004 an all weather 30 
synthetic racing surface is constructed.  In 2006/7, race course and 
training facilities reconstructed at Thoroughbred Park at a cost of 
$10 million.  In 2006, the first Australian race meeting conducted on a 
synthetic surface.  In 2010/11, all 26 race meetings televised nationally 
and internationally.  As indicated with these points, the ACT has a long 35 
history of racing which continues to this day.  The facilities and racing 
surfaces are highly regarded within the industry and by patrons, and the 
Black Opal Stakes is synonymous with Canberra throughout the country. 
 
Let me talk a little about the social fabric of racing.  The social fabric, 40 
vitality, culture of any city anywhere in the world is achieved by the 
varying interests of its residents, the varying facilities and infrastructure, 
its natural beauty and environment.  In racing, apart from horses and 
jockeys and trainers, fashion is a significant culture billed in the element 
of racing.  Fashions on the field competitions are highly competitive.  The 45 
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Face of Canberra Racing has been operating for two years and this Sunday 
a record number of 54 entrants will contest the first round of the 
competition to select the 2011 Face of Canberra Racing, another cultural 
building exercise for ACT Racing. 
 5 
Already the ACT struggles to maintain significant interest in sporting 
teams and events.  For example, over the years ACT has lost a Major 
League men’s basketball team, a Major League soccer team, a Major 
League cricket team, the V8 Super Car Race, the Rally of Canberra, a 
major tennis tournament, a major men’s golf tournament, the future of 10 
Summernats could be said as clouded, and the Canberra Capitals, a highly 
successful sporting team run on a break even budget.  If Canberra is to 
maintain an interest in soul and culture it needs racing as well as a blend 
of other sport, art, museums, festivals, restaurants, entertainment and 
natural attractions. 15 
 
MR OLIVE:  Okay, well we’ll now move to talk a little bit about the 
future funding outcome for the industry and we’ll firstly touch on the 
recommendation provided by the ICRC in their draft report.  The first 
option recommended by the draft report was the phasing out of funding 20 
after four years if progress is being made towards a national model.  The 
second recommendation talked about continuing with the budget funding, 
but at a reduced rate.  The third recommendation talked about removing 
the funding if a national model was in place.  
 25 
I guess I’ll just touch on the national wagering model.  It’s I guess a key 
part of the paper.  The Canberra Racing Club is very committed to work 
towards a national wagering model, and we’ve expressed to government 
and the ICRC previously that we are committed to working towards this 
through both our industry connections and also with government through 30 
a COAG agenda.  The Canberra racing industry would welcome a model 
that allows us to get a commercial return for our product that sustains us 
going forward and we would be very happy to move to that scenario. 
 
Having said that, the feedback from the Australian Racing Board in recent 35 
times with the positive result in the Racing New South Wales court case 
suggests that the national wagering model may well be quite a way off, if 
it happens at all.  The two largest providers, New South Wales and 
Victoria, have long-term agreements to sustain their industry, in terms of 
funding.  So it appears the motivator for those jurisdictions may be a little 40 
restricted but we want to be very clear that we’re happy to work towards 
this, but we need to disclose our concerns around the timeframe and 
likelihood.  And with Andrew Harding here later today he’ll be able to 
talk a little more about the national wagering model. 
 45 
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In terms of the impact of some of the recommended options on the 
industry, clearly if the funding was to be removed after the four years the 
industry would cease to operate, and a significant economic, social 
contribution would be lost to the territory, and the major investment that is 
in facilities in that industry would also lose its value.  If the funding was 5 
to be significantly reduced beyond the four-year period this would again 
deteriorate the competitive position of the Canberra racing industry.  I take 
you back to that prize money chart that I showed before.  If the funding 
base was to lower that situation would get worse and our ability to attract 
horses and wagering would deteriorate, and we would go in a downward 10 
spiral. 
 
The Canberra racing industry is very keen to work with government.  We 
understand that it is a period of transition for the racing industry and we’re 
very keen to work with the government to find a model that sustains us 15 
going forward that all parties are comfortable with.  But we do want to say 
that, you know, with the four-year period we’re hopeful we can be 
somewhere in four years, but we have concerns around that and we’re 
looking for a commitment from the government to work with us towards 
an orderly transition that sustains and gives us a platform to grow then 20 
industry going forward. 
 
We’d also like to put on the table that we’re interested in exploring 
linkages to our strategic partner ACTTAB.  I talked before about the 
gentlemen’s agreement and, you know, the connection between a racing 25 
industry and its home based TAB.  We’ve be very interested in working 
with the government to explore options to have an ACTTAB that’s 
increasing its turnover base and, you know, getting back to a level that can 
fund the industry and having some prospects of growth going forward 
that, you know, we can build a sustainable industry on.  So we’re very 30 
interested in that.  The Allen Consulting guys will talk a little bit later 
about the impact of a reduction in funding to the racing industry, and how 
that will affect the economic output of the ACT.  So I’ll probably defer 
that to later on. 
 35 
Okay, moving on to the three Codes issues and we’ve only got two slides 
to go, so we’re nearly there.  The three Codes of racing, being the 
Thoroughbreds, Harness Club and Greyhound Club have had a number of 
meetings through this process to try and, you know, work towards a 
sustainable solution and try and work in a spirit of cooperation to give the 40 
government a common view on as many things as we can.  The three 
Codes met recently to discuss the break-up of funding across the three 
Codes.  As we’re aware, the current model provides 75 per cent of funding 
to the Thoroughbred Code and 12½ per cent to each of the Greyhounds 
and the Harness Club. 45 
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Given that we’re in an environment of uncertainty with some of the 
recommendations of the report, the three Codes have agreed that over the 
next two years beyond the current year we will commit to continuing with 
the same 75/12½ per cent model to eliminate one item of uncertainty 5 
between the Codes.  So that’s been agreed.  In terms of the model beyond 
that it’s the view of the Canberra Racing Club that the formula will 
include a component for wagering on our own product, it’ll include a 
component for wagering on our Code product in the home based TAB, 
and it should include a component to reflect the economic contribution to 10 
the ACT economy.  Given that we’re, you know, very early in the Race 
Fields Legislation world in the ACT, you know, we don’t yet have a full 
year of data.  We felt it prudent to get an established trend in place there 
before making major changes and that, you know, gives the Codes some 
time to position themselves to adapt to that environment and to understand 15 
what impacts, you know, a move to that model might have on their 
funding. 
 
Okay, last slide.  The ICRC report touched on a number of suggestions 
around the governance of the three Codes.  One of those suggestions was 20 
to introduce an independent body to sit over the top of the three Codes.  
It’s the view of the Canberra Racing Club and the industry that we don’t 
see that this would necessarily add value.  We feel that an environment 
where funding is constrained and we need to grow our funding that, you 
know, an additional layer of administration would add costs.  I think the 25 
report touched on concerns around integrity in some of the Codes, 
particularly the smaller Codes.  It’s certainly the view of the Canberra 
Racing Club that we have very robust systems around integrity and that 
we’re very comfortable with those, and they’re of an industry standard.  
Integrity is a very important thing in the racing industry and we have the 30 
specialist skill to carry out that function, so we feel that, you know, that is 
working well in its current state. 
 
We just note here that we’re open to exploring the possibility of merging 
the three clubs.  You know, the report talks about a need for the industry 35 
to be efficient.  We see that there’s a possibility that a consolidation of the 
three clubs could achieve efficiencies.  It could also provide much needed 
scale to a small racing jurisdiction which the ACT is.  It would give us 
three clubs rather than just one, but obviously, you know, if we were to 
move towards that it would need to be of a positive sort of cashflow 40 
situation for the industry, and would need to be a workable arrangement, 
but we’re very open to exploring that option. 
 
The report also touched on the potential to co-locate the three Codes at a 
single venue.  Again we’re very open to that option and happy to work 45 
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through that and look at a feasibility study of that.  Again, it would need to 
be subject to a costs benefit test for the industry but the two options that 
were suggested in the report were a move of all three Codes to 
Thoroughbred Park and the possible creation of a new customised green 
field site.  The Canberra Racing Club is open to explore either of those 5 
options to the extent that, you know, they can provide a benefit to the 
industry.  And that’s the end of our presentation.  Thank you, Senior 
Commissioner, for hearing our presentation. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Thank you very much.  I should have said 10 
earlier on we’ll be able to get a copy of those slides that you’ve used 
today? 
 
MR OLIVE:  Yes. 
 15 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Well, thank you very much.  Let me just 
raise a couple of little matters with you.  First of all, in terms of the overall 
funding and the funding model in broad terms, and how racing product is 
paid for by those who provide it.  You said on the way through that sort 
of, you know, that you’ve acknowledged on the way through the racing 20 
industry of the ACT is relatively small by comparison to the surrounding 
states.  And indeed, on the basis of your slide on prize money we’re still 
behind New South Wales Provincial and Country numbers on the basis of 
that.  But yet you think that sort of, you know, we’ve got a real prospect of 
surviving here as an industry in the ACT.  Do you want to just sort of 25 
comment upon this?  I mean, how would we continue to survive if people 
are relying upon prize money to attract the best horses and therefore to be 
able to survive as an industry? 
 
MR OLIVE:  Yes, I’m happy to comment on that.  I think one thing, if I 30 
go back to that slide on the prize money, I think the BOBS Bonus is a 
bonus that’s eligible for some horses.  It’s not eligible for all horses, so 
you know if we look at our relativity to New South Wales country, for 
those horses that aren’t BOBS qualified, and for those horses of a 
particular age that aren’t BOBS qualified we are still competitive.  So we 35 
feel that if we’re able to sustain that position that there will be a market 
for us there.  So that’s important.   
 
I think it’s also worth noting that the racing industry, you know, whilst we 
operate in these jurisdictions and because of this historical legacy we have 40 
this home based TAB funding model, it’s very much an Australia based 
industry.  The Canberra Racing Club has around about 250 horses trained 
on course and they compete just about every day of the week in race 
meetings in New South Wales, you know, in more carnival times in 
Victoria and Queensland.  So Canberra based trained horses are able to 45 
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compete for New South Wales prize money as well, so there’s an 
opportunity, you know, along with the funding that’s provided through 
Canberra race meetings for them to sort of obtain funding through other 
jurisdictions as well. 
 5 
Do you want to expand on that at all? 
 
MR STUBBS:  Yes, Senior Commissioner.  One of the major strengths of 
the ACT racing industry in regard to the thoroughbreds is the training 
operations at Thoroughbred Park.  Currently there’s 250 horses in work.  10 
There’s been three new stable developments, one is under construction at 
the moment which will expand that up to around 300 horses, the capability 
of training 300 horses out at Thoroughbred Park.  A lot of the ownership 
of those horses is not from the ACT it’s from interstate, particularly New 
South Wales.  So at an average daily rate of $65 a day to train a horse 15 
seven  days a week that runs into a considerable amount of money that 
comes into the ACT and assists in the overall economy and the racing 
industry. 
 
Another point on the prize money issue is that Racing New South Wales, 20 
whilst they’ve been going through the court case with Sportsbet and 
Betfair have quarantined the revenue from Race Fields Legislation and 
that bank of money in quarantine has been building up, and I think it’s up 
around $80 million at the moment.  And they’ve stated in their strategic 
plan that once that money is released some of it will go into infrastructure, 25 
but they’ve stated in the strategic plan that Country prize money will go to 
$15,000 plus the BOBS Bonus and Provincial will go to $20,000 plus the 
BOBS Bonus per race.  So we’ll be at a further competitive disadvantage, 
not only from a prize money racing point of view, but it’ll put pressure on 
our trainers.  Owners that currently have got horses in the ACT for two 30 
reasons, because they’ve got fortnightly race meetings, that prize money 
that’s not too dissimilar at the moment, and also because they’ve got 
quality training facilities will start to think well, should I have that horse 
training at Provincial area rather than Canberra?  So that’ll weaken the 
whole economy of the ACT racing industry. 35 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  So if I can just follow that through a little 
bit because I want to get to the issue about, you know, the longer term.  
We tend to focus upon the sort of short-term a little bit in some of our 
discussions but we’re trying to sort of think beyond the present period of 40 
budget commitment that the government’s made. 
 
MR OLIVE:  Yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  If what you’re saying is so, doesn’t that put 45 
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us at a further disadvantage to sort of actually continue on into the longer 
term?  And if so, is any form of model or funding arrangement that we 
have beyond the present 4-year commitment likely to sort of see the 
industry in the ACT continue to be viable?  Will we find ourselves with a 
neighbour behaving the way that our neighbour is?  Do you follow? 5 
 
MR OLIVE:  Yes.  I definitely think the racing industry can be sustained 
in the ACT.  I think as Pete said, although our funding model and our unit 
prize money is, you know, deteriorating in terms of its competitiveness, 
our sort of core racing operation around training and, you know, the 10 
quality of our trainers and the investment in infrastructure here has 
continued to grow.  We’re very strong and vibrant on that side and we see, 
you know, reasonable prospects for growth on that front.  In terms of, you 
know, whether a different funding model can sustain us, I guess we’ve 
talked about a couple of options there, i.e. linking back to a better 15 
performing ACTTAB, the introduction of a national way remodel.  We 
feel there’s some hope in those models.   
 
And I guess I’d also say that, you know, there is the opportunity to play 
with your prize money mix.  Currently we have 26 race meetings at 20 
$14,000.  If the competitive benchmark changes we have the opportunity 
to change that mix to be, you know, 20 race meetings at what’s now a 
competitive prize money rate.  So there is that opportunity to play with the 
mix.  It’s not our preference to do that in a product world but, you know, 
that’s a way we could adapt to that circumstance. 25 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes, fine.  Now look, you’ve raised the 
issue of ACTTAB and it’s a fundamental point here to discuss. 
 
MR OLIVE:  Yes. 30 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  And you’ve highlighted the fact that sort of 
ACTTAB’s revenues have dropped off, but it’s still a fundamental part of 
your thinking, going again beyond the budget funding period.  Now, one 
of the issues - and clearly you can’t answer for ACTTAB but you might 35 
have some views - is just how sort, you know, viable into the future world 
ACTTAB is likely to be, notwithstanding their current moves to improve 
their product that they’re providing, the wagering product that they’re 
putting out there and the like. 
 40 
MR OLIVE:  Yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  I mean, how realistic is it sort of to sort of 
continue to sort of say well look, you know, we should be able to sort out 
ACTTAB.  It’ll be able to go ahead and with racing product fees this will 45 
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provide the basis for us to go forward into the future?  I mean, is that 
realistic? 
 
MR OLIVE:  It’s certainly a challenge, Senior Commissioner.  I think that 
there would need to be fairly fundamental change to the model.  I think 5 
there’s been some very positive steps, in terms of the introduction of a 
broader product suite and some technologies that go with that, and we feel 
that that will have a positive influence on the competitiveness of 
ACTTAB.  But I guess, you know, the wagering landscape has become 
very competitive and dynamic in the recent sort of five or 10 years and 10 
being a sort of government controlled relatively small bureaucracy has 
made it somewhat difficult for ACTTAB to compete.  So I think there 
would need to be a very fresh approach to thinking about, you know, how 
it can be re-invigorated and, you know, initiatives undertaken to improve 
the performance of ACTTAB.  So it would be a challenge but, you know, 15 
we feel that, you know, there’s some hope there that can be explored. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  The - - -  
 
MR STUBBS:  Sorry, I’ll just add that - - -  20 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes, please. 
 
MR STUBBS:  The Canberra Racing Club Board’s had quite extensive 
discussions around these points and hope to be able to bring forward, 25 
whether it’s in the response to the draft report or to the Minister at some 
stage in the future, ways that that may be achieved. 
 
MR OLIVE:  I guess if I can just make a last comment as well, Senior 
Commissioner.  I think the industry’s been in a difficult position in the last 30 
five or 10 years.  You know, our funding and future is tied to, you know, 
that of our home based TAB and we’ve, you know, seen the government 
controlled TAB’s performance deteriorate over that time.  We’ve been 
giving that message to government for some time and we’ve been 
attempting to get in a position to influence the direction of ACTTAB and 35 
that hasn’t sort of been realised, I suppose.  So it’s been I guess a very 
difficult situation for the racing industry to sort of, you know, see that 
happening. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  The Commission in its draft report, and you 40 
touched upon this very briefly, made reference to encouraging the 
industry, and in this particular case yourselves, to improve other sources 
of revenue and indeed talked about, you know, post the current 4-year 
arrangement any reduction in the sort of government funding would be 
linked but would not necessarily take away the incentive for you to 45 
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generate other revenue.  I mean, how realistic is that? 
 
MR OLIVE:  Look, Senior Commissioner, we’re continually working at 
growing our other revenue sources.  It’s been a strong focus of the club for 
the last five years or so, but I think we can achieve some growth but when 5 
you talk about a situation where the overall racing industry is essentially 
funded by wagering, you know, it provides something like 80 per cent of 
our revenue base and a lot of our other revenues link off that core revenue, 
that’s revenues that are derived from the events that sort of flow off, you 
know, race meetings that are funded by that sort of core wagering revenue.  10 
I think there’s some potential there but there’s no source of revenue that’s 
going to be able to, in the short to medium term, you know, replace for a 
significant change in wagering revenue. 
 
MR STUBBS:  Our non-wagering revenues by comparison to the 15 
competing clubs, if you want to call our neighbours in New South Wales, 
stacks up very well.  We’ve got very strong non-wagering revenue and 
certainly as Tim said it has been a focus of club, and particularly as the 
funding model that has been in decline because of the ACTTAB 
turnover’s being in decline.  That’s been a focus but we’ve got to be 20 
mindful of the fact that wagering revenue produces 73 per cent of our 
revenue.  To have any significant difference there’d have to be a massive 
increase in non-wagering revenue sources. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Now, again just sort of following this line 25 
of thought for the moment, the issue very much sort of spins on what does 
happen beyond the next four years or the next three years, the remaining 
three years of the current commitment by government, and the fact that 
the government has taken a step for the moment to provide budget funding 
to make up for the fact that sort of ACTTAB has seen sort of a down turn 30 
in its activity and the changes that are occurring elsewhere.  You’re 
arguing the gentlemen’s agreement is still there.  Do you think that’s 
going to continue on, or do you sort of see that sort of realistically sort of 
disappearing over the next period?  In other words, if the Commission is 
trying to look forward to give some sensible advice, should we be relying 35 
upon sort of the continued existence of that? 
 
MR OLIVE:  Look, I think we do see the gentlemen’s agreement 
continuing for the foreseeable future.  I think, you know, it’s obviously 
interrelated to what happens with the national wagering model.  New 40 
South Wales, for instance, have a 99-year agreement tied to their home 
based TAB for funding.  So that is a good indicator that, you know, they 
have a long-term view about that arrangement.  I think there’s other 
long-term arrangements across various jurisdictions.  So I think the reality 
for the foreseeable future is that if a national wagering model doesn’t 45 
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come into play, and we’ve mentioned our concerns around that, then the 
gentlemen’s agreement model will be the enduring model for the 
foreseeable future. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Just moving away then sort of - and I’m 5 
mindful of the time here - moving away from the issue of the funding 
going forward, just come back to the issue of the industry structure and 
the like.  You’ve talked about the issue of some form of independent body 
over the industry.  I think sort of the Commission had in mind sort of 
something that would effectively replace the existing Boards and be a 10 
single Board running the three Codes. 
 
MR OLIVE:  Yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  And so you made some comments on that 15 
and you more or less sort of expanded on that. 
 
MR OLIVE:  Yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  But you also indicated you’re open to the 20 
possibility of some form of merger and, indeed, some form of 
consideration of alternate sites or co-location, or something of that nature.  
Given my introductory remark on that - - -  
 
MR OLIVE:  Yes. 25 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  - - - do you want to just sort of expand 
upon that a little? 
 
MR OLIVE:  Yes, I’m happy to do that.  I think yes, perhaps there has 30 
been some slight misunderstanding, in terms of what that recommendation 
was in the report.  We are open to an outcome that provides efficiency and 
scale, and if the recommendation in the ICRC report was intended to have 
one body that ran, you know, the three Codes, you know, within an 
effective management team and an effective governance structure then I 35 
think we would be open to exploring that. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  And just follow your thought through for a 
moment, and you mentioned that the clubs had met recently to talk about 
the allocation of funds, and what have you.  One of the things that sort of - 40 
and you did touch upon a proposal that you were bringing forward, which 
I think I’ve got right, which talked about going forward which would 
perhaps move away from the 75/12½/12½ to something that would reflect 
a wagering component, wagering from your own TAB and also a 
component related economic contribution.  One of the things the 45 
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Commission touched upon was indeed future investment requirement to 
sort of actually build the industry.  Did that come into your consideration?  
I mean, does that figure in here?  We seem to be looking back at a 
historical situation rather than looking forward to investment in the future. 
 5 
MR OLIVE:  Yes.  You know, I guess, you know, in our initial comments 
I think from Access Economics we did look at some of those items.  I 
guess the difficulty is coming up with a workable model here.  You know, 
we’re probably a bit open to, you know, some variability around that 
model but yes, you know, we need to come up with something that’s 10 
going to be workable and measurable, I suppose. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR OLIVE:  And that was perhaps one of the challenges there, Senior 15 
Commissioner. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes, I understand.  I understand.  Look, 
we’ll hold questions, in terms of economic contribution, all that sort of 
thing to sort of later on.  I mean, that’s the - - -  20 
 
MR OLIVE:  Yes, we’d appreciate that. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  That’s the place to deal with that matter 
because it’ll become a bit technical.  I guess the issue for the Commission 25 
still comes down to what do we do post the current four years?  Does the 
government just continue to hand out budget funding?  What incentive do 
we give the industry to try to address things that are within your power to 
resolve?  And we understand the fact that there are things happening 
nationally in which you are just a part player and not a decision-maker, 30 
and unfortunately the ACT Government possibly falls into that category 
as well.  And how do we best give advice that sort of allows recognition to 
be given to the value of the product that you’re providing in a market 
which is not a perfect market where people actually directly pay for that.  
It’s done through the wagering system.   35 
 
So I think the Commission is still sort of a little bit unclear as to how you 
would see us going forward if ACTTAB doesn’t sort of return to some 
much greater performance than it has, and it’s got a long way to go, I 
suspect.  And we still have continuing debate about not just the Race Field 40 
Legislation and sort of the appeals and so forth, but whether or not there’s 
a continuation of the present gentlemen’s agreement versus some national 
model which is mooted, but progress is slow.  That’s still the fundamental 
conundrum that we face. 
 45 
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MR OLIVE:  Yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Have you got any final comments you 
might want to make on that or you might want to pick up? 
 5 
MR OLIVE:  Yes, I’m happy to make a comment there.  I think that, you 
know, the racing industry does have some thoughts around perhaps an 
ACTTAB model that we’d been keen to explore with government.  Maybe 
some changes to governance and the like.  You know, we’ll obviously be 
very keen as well to work towards that national wagering model.  We also 10 
feel that the economic information, you know, goes further to justify a 
budget funding position than perhaps the ICRC report has recommended.  
But it’s very much our desire to be in a model that, you know, we’re not 
dependent on a government handout or a government budget funding item 
which is subject to political considerations.  So I think we have given this 15 
a lot of thought and, you know, the historical model is the connection to 
the local wagering provider and, you know, I guess we’re keen to be able 
to influence that situation further. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  If the local wagering provider, ACTTAB in 20 
this particular case, is primarily generating its funding from betting on 
other activities, other than sort of on, you know, harness and greyhound 
and thoroughbred racing, are you suggesting that sort of, you know, that 
sort of that that other activity should be funding the racing industry?  Or it 
should just be linked to what the racing industry is generating, or what’s 25 
the model that you have in mind here?  I mean, does it go back to sort of 
something that sort of says well, it’s sort of ACTTAB is a betting agency 
and that should be used therefore to fund the racing industry, as distinct 
from, say cricket or something or other on which they also take bets? 
 30 
MR OLIVE:  Yes.  I guess it is linking back to that gentlemen’s 
agreement logic where the racing industry, as it does in all other 
jurisdictions, or sorry, the home based TAB as it does in all other 
jurisdictions, would be committed and linked to funding the racing 
industry which still makes up the overwhelming part of their turnover 35 
base, and that’s certainly very much the case with ACTTAB. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay. 
 
MR STUBBS:  In fact, the ACTTAB Act of 1964 was set up to fund the 40 
racing industry. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR STUBBS:  The development of sports betting is a relatively new 45 
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aspect of TAB wagering.  Under the old model the racing industry didn’t 
receive any royalties on other sports and, in fact, it’s inevitable that other 
sports will be seeking royalties and funding at some stage in the future, if 
they’re not already. 
 5 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR STUBBS:  And in fact, I know that a conference I attended that some 
of the major football leagues are looking at that.  Under the old model we 
didn’t receive royalty on fixed odds betting, it was only the para mutual.  10 
So there’s certainly we believe that the aspect of TAB wagering is about 
the support of the racing industry from the racing product. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Right, okay.  I understand.  Look, I think 
I’ll stop at this particular point.  Is there anything else that you might want 15 
to comment upon before we end this session? 
 
MR STUBBS:  I might just add one more point about the national funding 
model. 
 20 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Please, yes. 
 
MR STUBBS:  As you mentioned, we’re in a small jurisdiction and as is 
the ACT Government and our ability to influence the national model is 
limited.  Depending on what the percentages are on turnover we believe 25 
that nationally we can generate significant - or we know that we do 
generate significant turnover.  So the national model, it would come back 
to what the percentage is on the product.  I think at the end of the day the 
smaller states would need some sort of subsidy allowance for their scope 
and size international model, but possibly ultimately a national model is 30 
the best outcome for a jurisdiction such as ours. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  So you’re saying there that sort of even 
under a national model that sort of, you know, that that would not 
necessarily take away the need for some form of government budget 35 
funding, as such? 
 
MR STUBBS:  Not necessarily, you know, government funding.  It may 
be that the industry itself - - -  
 40 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  I see what you’re saying. 
 
MR STUBBS:  - - - needs to make some allowance, otherwise the 
dominant states - - -  
 45 
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SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay. 
 
MR STUBBS:  - - - may crush the smaller states. 
 
MR OLIVE:  There’s a formula that compensates for the grass roots feed 5 
of smaller racing, you know, to feed up to the participants for the - - -  
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay, I understand. 
 
MR OLIVE:  - - - feature races. 10 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay, I get the point.  Yes, okay fine.  Well 
look, thank you very, very much for that and thank you for being here and 
we look forward to your formal submission which is know is coming, and 
for the presentation today. 15 
 
MR OLIVE:  Okay, thank you Senior Commissioner. 
 
MR STUBBS:  Thank you, Senior Commissioner. 
 20 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  We’ll just take a moment’s break while we 
just organise the next witnesses. 
 
 
ADJOURNED [10.40 am] 25 
 
 
RESUMED [10.43 am] 
 
 30 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay, now if we resume this part of the 
public hearing, I welcome Mr Ray Redman, President of the Canberra 
Harness Racing Club and Mr Phil Hardy who is Secretary of the Canberra 
Harness Racing Club.  And I’ll get you just to introduce yourselves for the 
purposes of the tape and then I’ll pass over to you to speak to your 35 
submission. 
 
MR REDMAN:  Okay, Ray Redman, President of the Canberra Harness 
Racing Club, and thanks for letting us attend today.  
 40 
MR HARDY:  Phil Hardy, I’m the Secretary of the Canberra Harness 
Racing Club.  Good morning, and thank you for the opportunity to appear. 
 
MR REDMAN:  All right, what I would like to cover today are the areas 
of concern that we saw with the ICRC report up to date, and the areas that 45 
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concern us was the self-funding, the distribution, the governing body 
which was clarified during the Galloping Club’s thing which was good, 
and new facilities.  I noticed that the Galloping Club raised a problem 
with the self-funding and I believe the ICRC isn’t up to reality with what 
additional self-funding we can get within the harness racing industry.   5 
 
For example, back in 1990 with the club, owners paid 1 per cent of prize 
money to race, and if they were unplaced they received nothing.  So if we 
had $5,000 race they’d page $50 to race.  Nowadays they don’t pay that 
$50.  We raced on a Saturday night, so we received gate takings and those 10 
gate takings are up around the $2,000 per meeting.  Back in those days we 
had a major sponsor which was Fosters who sponsored the Canberra Cup 
and, as such, they had no harness racing link whatsoever.  Back then we 
had membership fees of $60 because we charged people to go through the 
gate, so it was cheaper to buy a membership fee than pay the gate fee.   15 
 
Back in those days we used to turn over bookmakers’ fees of about 
$17,000 per year - I wish.  And if that was applied to today’s that’s about 
$159,000 that we used to earn in revenue outside ACTTAB turnover 
distribution.  So when I look at today in 2010 the owners don’t pay 20 
anything to race.  They actually receive 2 per cent of the unplaced prize 
money so, in effect, people who race at Canberra it used to cost $50, they 
now get $100, so they’re $150 better off.  So that was one way of us 
providing incentive for people to race at Canberra and it has proved to be 
a winner.   25 
 
We now race Monday night.  The impact of racing Monday night was to 
get on Sky Channel because prior to being on Sky Channel the Canberra 
Harness Racing Club would be lucky to turnover $1.5 million a year on all 
our races.  Nowadays we’re up around the $28 million mark.  So we had 30 
to get on Sky Channel.  We’d been trying to negotiate that for years.  We 
now have no major sponsor anymore.  We actually donate our gate takings 
to the ACT Cancer Council on Cup Day.  Membership fees are down to 
$10 because I’ve got nothing to provide someone for being a member.  
There is no saving by paying out $60.  All the $10 does is help them come 35 
into the Canberra Cup Day and provide a discount for their dinner.  And 
bookmakers’ fees are now about $700 per year.   
 
So you can see from that that other funding is very hard for us nowadays 
and the other problem we have, we lease our facilities.  We don’t have a 40 
room which we can offer members plush seating or, you know, drinks 
nearby, or anything like that.  When we went on Sky Channel - we’ve got 
to pay to be on Sky Channel.  Sky Channel doesn’t pay us.  That’s a big 
problem across the industry because Sky Channel woo the bigger clubs 
because they know that’s where the money is, but they use us as - I refer 45 
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to it as stocking fillers to fill the gaps for when the big races aren’t there.  
When we race up to Sky Channel many of our problems before we were 
able to get the Monday nights was when we were discussing with Sky 
Channel we couldn’t get slots.   
 5 
And the other thing that’s when you look at harness racing nowadays, the 
major sponsors in harness racing are actually people that are involved with 
the sport.  When you look at Lexus who sponsor the Carnival Cups in 
New South Wales at the moment, the fellow from Lexus, he has got a 
strong interest in harness racing.  He has some horses.  So the major 10 
sponsors in harness racing now are actually people in the sport.  There’s 
not many people out there that provide sponsorship to harness racing that 
have no link to the sport.  Even for us at Canberra nearly all our sponsors 
are people that have got horses or have raced horses with us.  So they were 
the main problems with self-funding.  It is very difficult to get funding 15 
nowadays outside what we get from the Race Fields Legislation and 
turnover. 
 
The next thing I wanted to cover was the distribution and I’ve put together 
a graph just based on minimal funding, because what I wanted to look at 20 
was what would happen if we were reduced in funding by $50,000 per 
year every year, to say offset that against how would we survive.  And 
what I haven’t allowed for there is maintaining prize money.  If we had to 
increase prize money the situation would be worse.  We’d have to reduce 
the number of race meetings we held because we’d have to pay out more 25 
per race meeting, so we wouldn’t be able to hold as many.   
 
That we maintain the Race Fields Legislation amount.  In other words, 
what gets turned over in our meetings remains the same.  If we started to 
drop meetings I would see there could be a drop off because what we find 30 
is our turnover increases when we race every week, like in 
January/February this year when we raced four weeks in row, the turnover 
increased each week because you were there in the punters’ face every 
Monday night.  And heaven forbid if we ever got pulled off Sky 1 and 
relegated to Sky 2 because, from what I hear, on Sky 2 your turnover 35 
drops down about 70 per cent  of what you are when you’re on Sky 1.  So 
they’re just items I’ve put in there that if they came to fruition things 
would get worse. 
 
But what happens is if we gradually lost $50,000 per year what it means is 40 
we go from 26 meetings one year to 25, to 23, to 22 if it was a gradual 
$50,000 per year reduction.  Okay, what that does say though is Ray, 
that’s fine.  I still you racing.  You’re still able to survive but the number 
of race meetings that you’re able to hold decreases.  What I see as a 
problem is there’s a reduction in income to the ACT and what I’m trying 45 
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to do, from the Canberra Harness Racing Club’s point of view, is to 
maximise a return to the ACT. 
 
Currently I think last year ACTTAB turned over $17 million on harness.  
At the moment our goal is to turn over an average a million dollars on 5 
every Canberra Harness Racing meeting.  At the moment we’re turning 
over $12,200 per meeting and I estimate that we’ll turn over about 
$28,000 per annum, based on our current turnover and the way we’re 
going.  What that does is if ACTTAB’s only turnover over 17 and we’re 
turning 28 that to me means we’re a net importer of a product to the ACT 10 
on harness racing.   
 
What that does though is there is a point where - which around about the 
18 meeting mark or this is on the figures I’ve been able to put together.  
I’d need to sit down with the Commission or someone to get some more 15 
accurate figures - but there is a point where we go from a net importer of 
product to the ACT to a net exporter of product.  In other words, if we are 
getting more money in through Race Fields Legislation than the ACT is 
paying out, to me I see that’s a benefit to the ACT.  So that’s the impact of 
as the number of meetings drop off there is an impact within the ACT as 20 
well.  Even though we still survive and we’d still have a club here in the 
ACT, the impact of in it, it would directly impact on the ACT and what 
we actually generate. 
 
With a distribution, a couple of things in the paper I didn’t quite agree 25 
with.  The paper refers to ACTTAB distribution of the three Codes is a 
source of distribution.  I have a problem with using ACTTAB as we know 
that ACTTAB’s turnover has dropped over the last couple of years and I 
believe ACTTAB have lost punters that have now gone to another betting 
agency to place their bets.  I know I have.  I used to have an ACTTAB 30 
account and one in New South Wales.  We only have the New South 
Wales one now.   
 
The ACTTAB has to turned around what they turn over and try and win 
back the local people again, otherwise it will impact on the industry.  So 35 
you’ve really got to look at what is actually invested on the three Codes 
across Australia to see what the true value of the three Codes are.  Just to 
rely on ACTTAB I think doesn’t show the true picture what’s going on.  
Because you look at for us, for instance, at least 70 per cent of our trainers 
and horses come from New South Wales and they’re not going to have 40 
ACTTAB accounts.  Their owners aren’t going to have ACTTAB 
accounts, they will have a New South Wales account.   
 
I still have a problem with the budget line.  I would still prefer to be linked 
to ACTTAB, be it that ACTTAB will provide $5 million to racing rather 45 
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than a percentage as a link, because we’ve got to be linked to ACTTAB 
because that’s where the true link is to how we perform.  And saying it’s a 
budget line, it was supposed to provide us with security but the past four 
years I don’t feel comfortable at all.  So I still believe we are directly 
linked with ACTTAB in how we perform and how the racing industry in 5 
the ACT goes forward. 
 
With the distribution there’s several things I think need to go into the 
distribution formula.  I think there’s a base amount which each club needs 
to start off with.  There’s the turnover provided by Code on ACTTAB, 10 
there’s the product fee paid out by ACTTAB on each Code, and then 
there’s the turnover nationally on the ...(indistinct)... and I believe the 
formula should be a rolling three or five-year average.  Because could you 
imagine what would happen if we have another EI situation, it would 
directly impact on the two horseracing fraternities if we had something 15 
like that.  So I think it needs to be a three or five-year rolling average, so 
you don’t have significant changes occurring with the funding.  And I 
believe, you know, if we got the 75/12½/12½ per cent split for the next 
three years we’ll have three years worth of information which we can 
come up with a formula and apply that trend. 20 
 
Then on the governing body, we are more concerned of how it would 
work and if you’re saying that the governing body would replace the three 
existing, well we’d want to know how that would work and what it would 
consist of.  If it’s going to be a merging of the existing bodies I wouldn’t 25 
see there’d be much funding required, but we’d have to know that.  So we 
need just to know what the cost to the racing industry would be with 
regards to the governing body. 
 
New facilities.  We thoroughly support new facilities because the fact that 30 
we’re a lease holder at Exhibition Park is our biggest stumbling block to 
going forward at all.  It’s always our problem with race dates.  We can’t 
react very quickly to Sky Channel.  If they say we’d like you to race we’re 
always having arguments with Harness Racing New South Wales when 
they say “Can you race here?” or “Can you race there?” and we say we 35 
can’t.  It’s not our facility, it’s booked out for something, or the betting 
hall is booked out.  It makes it very hard for us to go forward when we 
lease the current facilities. 
 
So what we’re thinking outside the square, and thinking if we’re going to 40 
have a national body eventually for racing I don’t know where there’s two 
galloping tracks within about 15/20 Ks anywhere in New South Wales.  
Why don’t we have a combined thoroughbred, harness and greyhound 
facility, including Queanbeyan.  Queanbeyan used to have greyhounds, 
Queanbeyan used to have harness racing, but they closed down over the 45 
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years.  So what I was throwing out on the table is actually a regional 
racing facility which combined all of those.   
 
What I saw as benefits with that was it’s an independent facility.  I could 
see it as being something like Canberra Stadium which is managed and 5 
each of the Codes book the dates or whatever, just like the Rugby Union 
and the Rugby League soccer does with Canberra Stadium.  It would be a 
leader in facilities.  We’d have to look at it’s got to be designed for TV 
because all the three Codes now it’s TV and Sky Channel where you make 
your money.  Not very often do you have big crowds to events.  You have 10 
maybe one or two big events per year.  If you combine all the three clubs 
you could be racing at, I believe, anything up to 180 times per annum, 
therefore the facility is being used every two days.  I wouldn’t know of a 
single racing thing out there that would be racing that often.   
 15 
There could be potential for corporate sponsorship because it’s racing so 
often.  Possible greater bargaining power with Sky Channel because 
we’ve got so many dates that we’re trying to get there.  Could be a 
possible base for corporate bookmakers.  It would suit a national funding 
model if the national funding model came out because I believe a national 20 
funding model would distribute money on a regional basis, rather than 
state based basis.  That would make sense, mainly here in the ACT where 
it would make sense.  You could have lights on it, so you could have day 
and night racing for any of the Codes.  So it gives a potential for anything 
else. 25 
 
And then other possible things, you could include it with some form of 
cheap accommodation for people trying to get a start in any of the racing 
industries.  One of the biggest problems we’re finding with people 
wanting to start in the ACT is just the cost of housing in the ACT.  It’s 30 
very difficult, it’s not cheap.  And one of the ones that was thrown up was 
combine it with a national racing museum of some sort.  If you’re racing 
two days a week, and we’ve got every other sort of museum here, you 
want to have a racing museum. 
 35 
So I think we’ve got the potential if we did something like that to come up 
with something different, something that matched future requirements or 
whatever.  And I believe harness could race on a synthetic track.  I haven’t 
seen it done anywhere else.  Harness races on grass tracks around the 
world.  It’s a possibility that the second galloping track, the synthetic track 40 
could be used for harness racing.  It would all depend on design, and 
things like that.  And does a greyhound track need to be in the middle?  
It’s not that wide.  Can the greyhound track be outside?  And you know, 
you have access to the track going under the greyhound onto the middle of 
the track.  So I think there’s options and potential to look at what can we 45 
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do different?  If we are going to have a new site what can we do to 
maximise the TV coverage and maximise the use of all the tracks and the 
facilities? 
 
There’s a couple of other things that concern our harness racing is we’re 5 
still an orphan.  We’ve got a contract for racing but our lease on our 
training facilities ends in three years’ time.  What happens to us after that, 
we don’t know.  We’ve got to try and renegotiate that with Exhibition 
Park.  And on 13 March New South Wales is about to announce the 
impact of the sale of Harold Park and with that we see that race meetings 10 
at Menangle most probably get jumped about $20,000 or whatever.  And 
then we still have to see what will happen when New South Wales 
distribute their Race Field Legislation funds.  I’d see Country races being 
up around the $7/8,000 mark.  We can’t compete with that.  We therefore 
need to be innovative and different. 15 
 
What we find is, just for example, the Canberra Cup meeting the other day 
we had three races, one for $35,000, one for $10,000 and one for $6,000.  
Now, each of those races turned over $200,000 on turnover.  So the link 
between prize money and turnover, there isn’t a link.  As long as you’ve 20 
got competitive racing you will get your turnover.  And that’s how we’ve 
been able to grow our turnover in the ACT over the last couple of years 
because you’ll find the majority of our races are for maiden horses that 
haven’t won a race, and they’re only racing for $3,000 in the majority of 
cases.  And that works in the harness racing sense, because there is a niche 25 
market for us.  If we had to compete with New South Wales and try and 
race for $8,000 automatically the number of race meetings we’d be able to 
hold would drop from 26 down to 13.  We start to disappear very, very 
quickly.  We can’t do that.  We may as well not be here if we’ve got to try 
and compete with New South Wales. 30 
 
And thank you.  Any questions? 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Well, thank you very much.  Now, you’ve 
actually raised a number of interesting points.  Can I start with where you 35 
finished up, that’s the competitiveness of ACT harness racing, and you’ve 
highlighted the fact that with changes occurring in New South Wales, the 
sale of Harold Park and the like, and the higher prize money being 
offered, yet you still manage to sort of - well, that money is not around at 
the moment but you still manage to survive and, indeed, grown the 40 
business in recent years, in terms of the number of races that you’re 
holding a the moment.   
 
Now, leaving aside the question of continued access to EPIC and those 
sorts of matters which I understand are issues, how viable is that sort of, 45 
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you know, to continue on?  Do you think that this model that you’ve got 
which focuses upon, say maiden races and even though you’re paying 
lower prize money will still allow you to sort of stay on Sky 1 and 
maintain that coverage that is so important? 
 5 
MR REDMAN:  Okay.  To stay on Sky 1, you’ve got to run on time.  So 
that’s depending on your trainers getting their bloody horses - excuse me, 
getting their horses up to the mobile in time and now jumping out of the 
cart to adjust some equipment.  So to stay on Sky 1, we will maintain that 
as long as we run on time.  So it’s got nothing to do with funding.  Will 10 
we remain viable?  The advantage we’ve got in the harness racing industry 
is they have three classes for horses.  They have what they call a 
Restricted Class, which is maximum prize money is $3,000, a Country 
Front Class which I think the maximum at the moment’s $10,000 and a 
Metropolitan Class which will be the $20,000-odd which they’re going to 15 
have at Menagle.  
 
So we’re currently paying out the maximum amount of prize money we 
can for restricted races and there’s an example of a horse, it was called 
Wrecker here a couple of years ago, he won 20 restricted races.  He’d won 20 
about $40,000 before he’d run a Country Front race because what we do is 
we run heats into a final.  Now, you can win as many heats that you want 
but because the race is for a Country Front maiden.  So this horse had won 
10 to 12 heats.  Never won a final, so never went up out of the class.  He’d 
won nearly $40,000 before he then went and raced his Country Front. 25 
 
So the people placed their horses where they could get the maximum 
return on their horse.  So if you’ve got a horse that’s any good you’ll run 
him through the restricted races as often as you can, win four or five of 
those until you most probably win your Country Front, and then you’ll go 30 
and go through your Country Classes.  So you’re maximising a return on 
your horse.  You’re getting more return for your investment by doing that.  
Now, New South Wales don’t offer the heats and finals.  New South 
Wales have allocated racing to their clubs as either a restricted meeting or 
a Country Front meeting at $4,500/$5,000 and $6,000 or whatever it is.   35 
So we can still offer that.  I don’t think New South Wales will go to those 
heats and finals thing.  They could, but it works for us and that enables us 
to be competitive, mainly because we are offering the maximum prize 
money for that class of horse. 
 40 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay, so the issue of being competitive 
then, notwithstanding these differences, is not necessary at risk, providing 
you, as you say, run on time and offer this particular product which meets 
the industry’s need, in terms of - - -  
 45 
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MR REDMAN:  Yes, I don’t see it at risk and I can’t see them bumping 
the - like, the prize money might only go up by $500.  Next time the 
Harness Racing Council meets they might turn around and bump it up to 
$3,500 but it’s not going to jump significantly, and we don’t have to 
compete with New South Wales in that sense. 5 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay.  Now, moving on then, you talked in 
terms of a break-even point where if you start losing some races you’ll 
become a net importer of product, or the ACT becomes a net importer of 
product, effectively.  But you were still saying that you would still be able 10 
to operate as a club even if you were to drop down to 18 or something less 
number of races. 
 
MR REDMAN:  Yes, we’d be able to operate as a club but the impact on 
the ACT is the ACT would be paying more money out of the ACT than 15 
bringing it in. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR REDMAN:  Therefore if the three Codes all disappeared and they 20 
weren’t here anymore, in effect, the ACTTAB it would paying out all their 
money that they would be paying the Race Fields Legislation would be 
going to everywhere in Australia bar the ACT, so the ACT wouldn’t be 
getting any money back whatsoever.  And I’d see that in the long term if a 
national funding came paying 4½ per cent or whatever ACTTAB used to 25 
pay, I believe that it would double up to 10 or 15 per cent that they’d have 
to pay to that national body.  And then if there was no racing here in the 
ACT well, it’s all gone.  We don’t get any of it back. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  Well, thinking in terms of the 30 
ongoing funding for the industry.  I mean, you’ve indicated that you’re 
comfortable to stay with the present 75/12½/12½ over the next three 
years, four years counting this year, but then to move to a moving average 
arrangement which reflected a number of points, and I’ll get that slide 
from you later on. 35 
 
MR REDMAN:  Yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Just to pick that up.  Again, you haven’t 
sort of touched upon sort of to what extent that addresses the issue of 40 
future investment.  Is that an issue to you or you’re comfortable to work 
on past performance, which is basically what the moving average is 
doing? 
 
MR REDMAN:  Yes.  Well, it’s working on past performance but over 45 
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the years you’ll be getting a trend of whether you’re improving or 
decreasing your return in the local industry.  The only way I can see the 
whole industry going forward is we’ve got to provide a product out there 
that Sky Channel wants and can be broadcast around the world, because 
we do get a product fee from our races in England and that as well. 5 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR REDMAN:  For investment, okay, racing if you’re a true bean 
counter you would wonder why bother, because there are a lot of 10 
intangibles that aren’t there that come back to the local region.  But if 
everyone had that opinion that, you know, it won’t work eventually you 
will have no grass roots racing anywhere in Australia, you’d only have the 
major clubs, and eventually they’d fall over because there was no grass 
roots racing to support it.  You just can’t take a bean counter reaction and 15 
look at what’s the financial impact for us.  I think you’ve got to look at the 
bigger picture of things. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  To take that forward a little bit 
further, and so forth, the present sort of funding arrangements going 20 
forward beyond the current 4-year period, we’ve heard the thoroughbreds 
sort of say that sort of they’d be looking to sort of, you know, the model 
with some sort of adjustments to ACTTAB and better performance from 
them.  Are you comfortable with that proposal if we sought better 
performance from ACTTAB, then a combination of the Racing Fields 25 
Legislation and the ACTTAB share would be sufficient or appropriate? 
 
MR REDMAN:  I think our funding has to be linked directly to ACTTAB 
and on the performance of ACTTAB and our performance across 
nationally for the Codes.  I think if we don’t help grow ACTTAB we’re 30 
not going to help grow our own sports in here.  I think we have to help 
ACTTAB win back those punters that have left, the smaller punters.  We 
can’t do much with the corporate ones but win back the smaller punters to 
come back to ACTTAB because I believe ACTTAB did lose a lot of 
punters because you can’t have flexi betting.  We get people come down 35 
from Goulburn, they go to the counter and go and ask for flexi betting and 
they say “Well, we don’t have that here in the ACT”.  That has made a big 
impact on people that have had accounts with ACTTAB.  And nowadays 
you don’t go to a TAB, the majority of betting is on line and when you 
click flexi bet or if it wasn’t there, you know, you’re not going to use it, 40 
you go to someone else, just as I did. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Now, to use yourself as an example, I 
mean, you said you’ve opted out of ACTTAB and you - - -  
 45 
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MR REDMAN:  Yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  - - - you use the New South Wales TAB.  I 
mean, how realistic is it to get someone like yourself to come back to 
ACTTAB?  I mean, is it a realistic option? 5 
 
MR REDMAN:  Well, that is something that we’d have to work on with 
ACTTAB.  How?  That’s the million dollar question, I suppose, but that’s 
what we have to work on doing. 
 10 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Currently it’s about $7 million - - -  
 
MR REDMAN:  Okay. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  And I get your point, I think.  In terms of 15 
making the industry sort of attractive but to that wider coverage to keep 
you on sort of Sky 1 and, you know, building the industry and fitting in 
with the total industry the way you’ve described it, in terms of the type of 
races, I mean, how realistic is that?  I mean, you’ve currently got this 
Monday night arrangement which seems to be working very well for you.  20 
Is it realistic to see that sort of growing bigger, or do you see sort of 
harness racing in the ACT staying around about what it is, subject to sort 
of getting some future certainty regarding a revenue strength? 
 
MR REDMAN:  Well, we’ve grown over the last - since we started on 25 
Monday nights I think we started with 15 or 16 - 13 Monday nights.  Next 
year we’re up to 24.  But then when we get to 25/26 meetings a year 
you’re then at the limit of my current funding.  That’s maximising what 
we get.  So we’ve gone and we’ve nearly doubled what we’ve had out 
there on the Sky Channel.  That is due to taking opportunities when 30 
they’ve arisen and we’ve been able to grab them.  And you know, if we 
had more money we could most probably race a bit more often.  I would 
like to see some meetings of a Saturday or something and see if we can 
get on Sky 2 or something, I don’t know.  But for the moment 25/26 
meetings was what I saw we needed to be a net importer of product into 35 
the ACT. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  And that’s been pretty much the sort of the 
driver that you’ve had in mind to be that net importer of - - -  
 40 
MR REDMAN:  My whole drive is to be a net importer of product, yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  Now, just moving back now to the 
issue of the facilities and the like.  I mean, as you say, you’re at the mercy 
of the facilities at EPIC and that’s coming up for re-negotiation and, you 45 
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know, uncertain as to what might happen, plus you’ve got the issue the 
surrounding other facilities.  Where does that sort of place you?  I mean, 
sort of presumably, given the fact that you’ve already got this lock-in 
arrangement with Sky you suddenly find yourself in presumably 
somewhat of a difficult position if EPIC was to put the rates up or, indeed, 5 
was to sort of say we don’t want you here of a Monday night. 
 
MR REDMAN:  No, we’re right, we’re okay for the race track which is in 
Exhibit Park Centre.  We’ve got an ongoing lease that goes on until either 
party decides to cut it. 10 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay, fine. 
 
MR REDMAN:  Okay, so that’s fine.  What runs out in 2014 is the 
training track lease out the back, which is the training track and the 80 15 
stables. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Right. 
 
MR REDMAN:  Okay, what would happen if we lost that?  You would 20 
then have no trainers in the ACT if that happened.  All our people that 
race would have to come from interstate if that was the case.  So you’ve 
got to remember originally 20-odd years ago all our trainers used to 
actually train on Exhibition Park itself.  When it first started up we used 
one of the barns there and then I think it’s about 20-odd years ago, 25 
22 years ago we leased the land out the back and built the five stables out 
there.  And we can now run trials on that back track, we can do whatever 
we need on the back track. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  I see. 30 
 
MR REDMAN:  But in 2014 if that’s gone there’ll be nowhere for any 
harness racing people to train in the ACT. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  And that’s seriously going to impact the 35 
market that you’re particularly - - -  
 
MR REDMAN:  Well, 30 per cent of our horses come from there and a 
big selling point, and the big reason why Canberra is a place to race is that 
that is one of the best training facilities you’ll find anywhere in Australia.  40 
We’ve got a scheme that we started up for trainers to come and start, and I 
think we’ve had two so far come and accept our reduced rate because they 
can train there and they don’t have to travel, and they can get the 
2 per cent return, and all the rest of it.  And I think the biggest problem 
though is accommodation costs in the ACT to live.  And that is one of our 45 
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building blocks for racing in the ACT is having that training facility there. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  And that fits in with the regional 
model you were talking about as well.  I mean, sort of you said that the 
way forward would be the regional model which picks up sort of the wider 5 
area and becomes a part of the national industry in that sense. Have I got 
that right? 
 
MR REDMAN:  If it was a regional model I’d most probably want to - the 
training track would be there and we’d only go and race at the new 10 
facility, and that’s all it would be there for us to do. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Right.  Yes, okay.  I get the idea.  So in 
terms of where you’re arguing we should go, I mean, you’ve given 
support to sort of, you know, looking at further the issue of some sort of 15 
bringing together a sort of the clubs maybe under a national arrangement, 
subject to sort of appropriate consideration of issues and some sort of joint 
facilities, again subject - in fact, I thought your diagram was particularly 
colourful.  I think I’d watch television just to see the diagram it’s so 
colourful, but it highlighted the point that you were making.  And you’ve 20 
highlighted the fact that you’ve been able to transition the Harness Racing 
Club from a much smaller operation into what you’re doing now, 
notwithstanding the withdrawal of your large sponsor that you had some 
years ago and the difficulty of getting sponsorship now in the same way. 
 25 
So the issue seems to sort of be ultimately how do we guarantee sort of 
some funding going forward?  How do we actually get value for the 
product that we’re producing?  And you’re very much reliant upon the 
ACTTAB type approach to achieve that.  Have a I read that right?  Have I 
understood? 30 
 
MR REDMAN:  I believe that we’ve got to maintain a racing here in the 
ACT.  If we didn’t and we went to a national model we wouldn’t get any 
funding.  We’ve got to have something in place that a national model then 
merges into, because if we don’t do that I don’t see a future for the 35 
industry.  And you know, if you wanted you would just take the harness 
racing out of ACT and would it make a big difference?  It would be 
interesting to see what would happen if you took the sport out of the ACT. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 40 
 
MR REDMAN:  Do we still want it here or don’t we? 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 45 



Racing Industry Inquiry    RAY REDMAN  
22 February 2011    
Merrill Corporation 

35 

MR REDMAN:  I think the potential we’ve got here in the ACT is the fact 
that New South Wales in the harness racing industry is really going to 
boom.  I expect it to boom over the next couple of years with the sale of 
Harold Park and all the rest of it.  We’re getting a lot more bigger trainers 
who are about to move to Menagle.  They’re about to describe the new 5 
Menagle training complex and what’s going there.  I see that as a big 
potential for Canberra to grow, and the only way we’ll grow is by 
bringing more trainers down here so that we get more turnover in the ACT 
economy. 
 10 
I have to say, you know, I was only thinking the other day off the top of 
my head I can think of about 14 or 15 trainers that no longer train in the 
ACT who are still here, because they’ve either got too old or lost interest 
in the sport, but we’re not replacing the ones we’re losing, and we’re in a 
position to be able to do that with the growth in New South Wales. 15 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Right.  I don’t think I’ve got any other 
questions I want to raise at this time.  Again looking forward to getting 
your submission and appreciate what you’ve presented today.  Was there 
anything else that you want to add to what you’ve said? 20 
 
MR REDMAN:  No.  I think from a harness racing sense, whatever 
happens we’ll survive in one shape or form.  You know, things we can do 
is we can drop all our classic races and race all our races for $3,000.  So 
whatever the guidelines or whatever we’ll do our best to maintain it to be - 25 
as I said, my still aim is to still be a net importer to the ACT. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  Yes, I understand.  Yes.  Well, thank 
you very, very much for that.  I appreciate you being here and look 
forward to your submission when it comes in the next week or so. 30 
 
MR HARDY:  I’ve been sitting here very nicely, thank you very much.  
You’ve covered it well, thanks Ray. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Thanks kindly.  Okay, we’re going to take a 35 
break for 20 minutes, just to get a cup of tea and I think there’s some tea 
and coffee outside waiting for us.  So thank you very much. 
 
 
ADJOURNED [11.23 am] 40 
 
 
RESUMED [11.48 am] 
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SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Well, we welcome everyone back and we 
welcome representatives from the Greyhound Racing Club and invite you, 
first of all, just to introduce yourselves and then to make a presentation as 
you so wish, and we’ll take the opportunity to ask questions much the 
same as we have with other witnesses appearing today.  So over to you. 5 
 
MR DWYER:  Thank you, Mr Baxter.  My name’s Ashley Dwyer, 
Chairman of Canberra Greyhound Racing Club.   
 
MR BRADY:  Mike Brady, Secretary of Canberra Greyhound Club, thank 10 
you Senior Commissioner. 
 
MR BUSH:  And Simon Bush from Bush Consulting here today 
representing the Canberra Greyhound Racing Club.  Thank you for 
allowing the Canberra Greyhound Racing Club to be here today and 15 
present this public hearing.  Firstly, I’d like to congratulate the 
government and the Independent Competition and Regulatory 
Commission for conducting this important review into the future of the 
ACT racing industry and allowing the industry and other interested 
participants the opportunity to provide feedback to the draft report.  We 20 
look forward to putting in a submission on the draft report by March 1, but 
through this hearing would like to make a number of points that we 
consider important to go through the issues of the structure of the industry, 
probative funding and the economic assessment or contribution of the 
racing industry to the community. 25 
 
1.  Structure of the Industry.  The club does not support draft conclusion 
6.1 of moving towards an independent body governing the three Codes.  
The key reason behind this conclusion or recommendation is one of 
probity which I’ll deal with in more detail in a moment.  The issue of 30 
probity and the allegations involved from the media article on one race 
does not provide substance for this recommendation.  We believe the three 
clubs, and the greyhounds in particular, run a very cost efficient and 
effective operation and see no value from adding another layer of 
bureaucracy.   35 
 
Further, investigations into the situation in Tasmania by the club which is 
cited in the draft report as a reform template convinced us that the minor 
clubs tend to be overlooked in the deliberations of an independent body.  
Further, we would have concerns that such a government appointed body 40 
could politicise racing in the ACT, as it has done in other jurisdictions.  In 
the ACT we are lucky to have both sides of politics supporting our 
industry and we would not want to establish mechanisms that could 
undermine bipartisan support. 
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2.  Probity.  There was direct reference in the draft report in section 2.3.2 
on page 29 that calls the probity of the ACT racing industry into question 
based on the reference of a local media article published in 2009 stating 
concerns of a greyhound race held in December 2009.  The draft report 
states that, and I quote, “...while the incident may be considered minor by 5 
the CGRC”.  We wish to place on the record here today that we took this 
matter, and all probity matters, seriously.   
 
This race was fully investigated by the New South Wales Greyhound 
Association and found that there was no enough circumstantial evidence 10 
to progress to a formal Inquiry.  However, the following integrity changes 
have been implemented by the CGRC as a result of concerns raised: 
 
1. All greyhounds nominated to race in a maiden or mixed stake race at 

the CGRC TAB meetings must have completed a satisfactory 15 
performance trial.  This brings CGRC in line with New South Wales 
TAB meetings.  The rule change ensures that greyhounds drawn to 
race have disclosed form to help assess the greyhound’s chances 
when it next competes in a race, and have trialled satisfactorily prior 
to racing.  Prior to this rule change a greyhound may have been drawn 20 
to race in a maiden or mixed stake as a first starter, and therefore have 
no disclosed form so as to assess his chances in the race.   

 
2. Canberra Greyhound Racing Club race meetings are graded by the 

Greyhound Racing New South Wales centralised grading system.  25 
These bring CGRC in line with New South Wales TAB meetings.  
This procedural change ensures that greyhounds nominated to race at 
CGRC are graded according to a published set of rules and via a 
higher integrity process that is independent of the CGRC.  This 
procedural change ensures there can be no real, implied or perceived 30 
integrity breach in either favouring or disadvantaging any greyhound 
or owner/trainer who may nominate for the meeting. 

 
3. Funding.  The three clubs have agreed that for ease of budget planning 
for both the ACT Government and the clubs themselves, and given the 35 
current timeframes for the adoption of any report recommendations we 
support for two years only, that is financial years 2011/12 and 2012/13, 
the continuance of the current traditional split of funding to the ACT 
racing industry for 75/12½/12½ per cent splits.  From 2013/14 and 
beyond, however, we support draft finding 5.1 of the ICRC that the 40 
funding split between the clubs reflect the level of wagering activity, as 
such a calculation could be responsive and equitable for all three clubs.  
The CGRC believes that ACT Racing should be funded beyond the 
current period and that the level of government funding should be the 
same as it is today.  In other words, we don’t agree with draft conclusion 45 
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4.2 suggesting budget funding should be reduced at the end of the current 
4-year period. 
 
We believe this recommendation is based on the incorrect economic 
analysis that budget funding to the racing industry does not, in turn, 5 
contribute back to the ACT community.  I will address this issue further in 
a moment.  Further, we believe that future government funding to the 
racing clubs revert to being tied back to ACTTAB revenues and funding 
levels be linked to the levels of wagering it transacts.  The CGRC is 
concerned about the de-linking of racing funding from that ACTTAB and 10 
becoming a budget item that can be removed or easily reduced by the 
Treasurer of the day.  The linking to ACTTAB revenues in our view 
provides greater protection of racing funds to the CGRC than the threat of 
ACTTAB revenues declining further.  The Race Fields incomes provides 
the incentive to improve the product we offer and the government or 15 
budget funding provides the certainty we need to plan ahead and remain 
competitive. 
 
4.  Industry Economic Analysis.  A joint concern that the three ACT 
Racing Clubs have with the draft report is the way it has assessed 20 
available evidence, including reports by industry to conclude that the 
racing sector offered little economic contribution to the ACT community. 
Such was the level of concern on this point that the three clubs agreed to 
fund another economic analysis by a reputable and independent economic 
advisory firm in Allen’s Consulting Group to respond to this joint issue 25 
and the way the ICRC report assessed the economic value add of racing in 
the ACT. 
 
It is the base argument about economic contribution that is giving the 
ICRC the justification to recommend that the government reduce its 30 
funding commitments to the ACT racing industry beyond the current 
4-year period.  We hope that through further economic analysis that we 
can demonstrate that government funding to the local racing industry does 
offer value for money and, in fact, provides a positive net return to the 
ACT community.   35 
 
5.  Tri-Code Facility.  The CGRC supports the investigation of a Tri-Code 
facility on the basis that it is part of a thorough cost benefit analysis.  It is 
unclear from the reading of the draft report what, if any, benefits may 
ensue from either a green fields or revamped Thoroughbred Park Tri-Code 40 
facility.  Evidence in jurisdictions such as Tasmania and Queensland 
demonstrate that budget blow-outs for new joint facilities are common, 
promises made around new facilities are not kept, and other joint Code 
issues arise.  We would want all these matters fully investigated before 
having a considered view on the benefits or otherwise of such a proposal.   45 
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Further, we would not entertain a Tri-Code facility with a track inside a 
track inside a track, and would seek an adjacent track alongside the 
thoroughbred and harness track in any such consideration of a Tri-Code 
facility.  The issues associated with a greyhound track in sitting inside two 5 
or three other horse tracks are many.  Thank you for allowing the club to 
make this opening statement.  We would welcome any questions you may 
have. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Good, thank you.  Thank you for that.  Let 10 
me just go to the funding matter, if I can start off there, and then we’ll 
come back to a couple of the other issues on the way through.  The 
funding issue is fundamental obviously to sort of the Inquiry.  At the 
moment the government’s provided budget funding out for a limited 
period of time.  Are you suggesting that the government should continue 15 
with that budget funding beyond 2013/14?  Is that your proposal? 
 
MR DWYER:  The position is that we appreciate the government’s giving 
the Racing Codes certainty of funding during this period of time leading 
up to a national funding model.  Our view is that proactive actions need to 20 
happen to ensure a national funding model is in place within the three to 
four-year window.  If there isn’t a national funding model in place by the 
end of the three to four years there still needs to be certainty of base 
income for all the Codes to continue.  And I think also in that period of 
time the draft report was not in a position to be able to analyse the income 25 
from Race Fields Legislation which has only been coming in since about 
March or April of last year.   
 
Our initial analysis of the income from Race Fields Legislation is that 
we’re very pleased with the start of the flow of money from bringing 30 
corporate bookmakers into the fold to pay for the intellectual property 
that’s been provided by the clubs in providing the races.  It’s important 
that Race Fields Legislation brings people into the fold to pay an 
appropriate amount of money for the use of the product, and we think that 
further analysis of the quantum of that money from corporate bookmakers 35 
needs to be taken into account in the next one to two years for providing 
an incentive to clubs to provide good quality product that leads to people 
wagering on that product. 
 
So in summary, I would see the benefits of certainty of funding, see 40 
there’s a need for proactive work to happen to come up with a funding 
model that suits all Codes nationally.  And if by some chance that doesn’t 
come to fruition there’s still the need for ongoing certainty of base 
funding for the Codes. 
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SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Thank you for that.  We’ve heard from 
other presentations made this morning that there’s a view that ACTTAB 
would again become the sort of the main source of funding.  In other 
words, it’s de-linking from the budget funding as such to sort of ACTTAB 
as being the sort of the main source.  Is that - - -  5 
 
MR DWYER:  Yes, that is - I think the government was placed in the 
position where due to ACTTAB performance and decline of revenue from 
ACTTAB there was a need to provide certainty by a budget of funding for 
a limited period of time for three to four years, and that’s appreciated.  10 
However, personally I think ACTTAB have addressed a range of matters 
that may have potentially affected turnover in offering new products 
within the foreseeable future that I would hope would turn around the 
performance of ACTTAB.   
 15 
But I’m extremely concerned about the decoupling of the relationship 
between governments instituting legalised betting for on-course turnover 
by TABs, and that generation of income should be for the return to racing 
for the intellectual property that racing provides.  Being placed as a budget 
line item, appreciative of the certainty of funding, however, it leaves open 20 
to uncertainty such as budgets being in the red, and then as a budget line 
item you’re left to potentially have nothing through to a lesser amount 
than what you may have been planning for. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  You might to care to sort of just sort of 25 
comment on the thought given the national issues involved with some 
form of a national funding model and the ACT Government’s relative size 
and degree of influence, how realistic is it to expect that we’ll see 
something come out of that process over the next 3, 4 years?  And if we 
don’t see a sort of resolution to that issue how long should the government 30 
go on funding through the budget - and I’ll put in the caveat that if 
ACTTAB doesn’t get its act together, as it were? 
 
MR DWYER:  I’m extremely confident of the role of all jurisdictions in 
coming up with a national funding model.  I believe that a well briefed 35 
Racing Minister has an equal place at the table to every other Racing 
Minister in coming up with recommendations for a national consistent 
funding model.  If I was a corporate bookmaker I’d be pulling my hair out 
with the range of red tape and myriad of rules.  To me they are the two 
key aspects to be able to overcome differences across jurisdictions for 40 
what a corporate bookmaker should pay.   
 
I think each of the Race Fields Legislations has gone in the right step to 
bring corporate bookmakers into the fold, so that was the most important 
first step.  The second step is to ensure consistency of payment for 45 
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product.  And the third step is to ensure that it’s an easy process to make 
those contributions that they should be making to the use of the 
intellectual property of each racing Code.  I think a three to four-year 
window in my mind is a suitable period of time to be proactive in 
enforcing a national approach to funding.  But without a proactive 5 
approach I think it will just lurch, lurch, lurch for the next three to four 
years. 
 
So my first point is be proactive.  An engagement of Ministers for the 
consistency and the need within a two to three-year window.  It’s a last 10 
step measure that we have to say well, if that doesn’t happen we still need 
certainty of funding.  I think the ideal scenario is that it’s recoupled with 
ACTTAB performance and reanalysing the return to racing of the 
corporate bookmakers’ money that’s coming in through Race Fields 
Legislation. 15 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  And I think you said on the way through, or 
it was said on the way through that early indications are encouraging, in 
terms of that funding from Race Fields. 
 20 
MR DWYER:  They’re encouraging on two levels.  The quantum is not 
sufficient to be the sole sustenance for racing but the quantum is still an 
encouraging amount.  And the other aspect, it’s encouraging in terms of 
providing a good quality wagering product where Canberra Greyhound 
Racing Club has turned around from having no races within the last three 25 
to four years on Sky Channel, being covered by linked to TAB, through to 
having limited coverage on the local ACTTAB and holding perhaps $100 
or $200 per race, through to now having 44 races per annum, all covered 
by Sky Channel, principally on Sky Channel 1 and linked where our win 
pools can be in the vicinity of $20,000 to $25,000 per race.  So a 30 
substantial turnaround with the corporate bookmakers having access to 
Race Fields Legislation and being on Sky Channel. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Just following that point through about Sky 
Channel and what you’ve done over recent years to lift the coverage.  35 
Maybe you just sort of just want to expand upon that.  The ability of 
greyhounds in the ACT to remain a viable part of the industry, is that a 
sort of something we should be concerned about?  I mean, are we sort of 
basically - I was going to sort of say beating a dead horse but that’s 
inappropriate - but are we running down a sort of a field here that really 40 
has moved on in other places and the ACT doesn’t really sort of count, in 
terms of the national market for greyhound racing? 
 
MR DWYER:  No, I believe the product has moved on substantially, so 
some of the prime indicators, as I say, is the Sky Channel coverage, seeing 45 
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Sky Channel wish to give coverage to a good product.  The good product 
is being provided by Canberra Greyhound Racing Club to the tune of 
44 meetings per annum.  The proof is in the pudding, in terms of TAB 
turnover, as well as the returns from corporate bookmakers, as in people 
are wagering on the product with good returns to the industry which 5 
provides further incentive to provide good quality. 
 
With the recent changes in the Board we’ve placed a particular emphasis 
on forward business planning and looking at our product for both 
on-course and off-course patronage.  We recognise the changing 10 
environment with still limited crowds on-course and then what have we 
got to do to ensure a good quality product that’s broadcast Australia-wide.  
So some of the features that we’ll be announcing in the foreseeable future 
will be along the lines of what’s prize money that’s attractive to attract the 
best quality product for people to have confidence in what greyhounds 15 
they’re racing, what greyhounds they’re wagering on.   
 
An indication is that Canberra Greyhound Club has a flagship race, the 
Canberra Cup, which has a Group 3 status nationally, which will have 
prize money of $35,000, of which $25,000 to the winner.  So it’s a 20 
substantial flagship race attracting good quality of greyhound from all 
around Australia.  There’s three other major races also in that flagship 
type approach to prize money.  And then there’s also the bread and butter 
to ensure that every race meeting has a good return to the owner and 
trainer from the bread and butter prize money.  This’ll see the prize money 25 
provide a good incentive for people to race at Canberra, as opposed to 
deciding to race at a nearby competitive track. 
 
We also recognised in doing some analysis of the competitive advantage 
with other tracks that we will work with other tracks for win/win 30 
scenarios.  So something along the line of programming is a good example 
where you don’t try to compete for the same greyhound and owner/trainer.  
One person and greyhound can’t be in the same place at the same day and 
time.  So there are our win/win scenarios but there are also others that we 
recognise if we can provide the best quality product with good returns to 35 
the owner and trainer and they make the decision to race consistently at 
Canberra that’s what we’re after. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  And just to build on it just a fraction, we 
heard the harness folk say that they’ve developed a product in a sort of a 40 
market, in terms of who they’re seeking to attract to their races which 
meets a particular niche within the overall industry.  You’re competing, I 
think you’ve mentioned to me on previous occasions, with Wagga and 
with Nowra and presumably Dapto.  Is that the sort of same sort of 
strategy you adopt, and sort of you’re really looking for this win/win 45 
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outcome being a combination of not only timing of race meetings, but also 
of the type of entrant that you’re seeking after? 
 
MR DWYER:  There’s a combination of win/win and providing at the end 
of the day after you’ve looked at win/win what’s the best for the club.  So 5 
in the win/win situation programming the prize money levels to be at least 
competitive and above your immediate competitors for owners and 
trainers and greyhounds.  So we’ve just done a recent review of prize 
money levels to be at least equal to our immediate competitor, being 
Nowra Greyhounds who race on the same day in an afternoon slot, and we 10 
race in a night time meeting, and be above them in other levels of prize 
money.   
 
We also had a look to see if we can be other attractions for owners and 
trainers to come to Canberra, so providing regularity of programming with 15 
good heats and finals, where the finals will be prize money above the 
other competitors’ normal races.  And then the flagship events, as I 
covered, to ensure that everyone can aspire to good returns for their 
greyhound, being significant money along the lines of $25,000 to the 
winner of the Group 3 Canberra Cup. 20 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  You mentioned on the way through that 
you have some problems about a Tri-Code facility but you did make the 
point that sort of, you know, you’d want that fully analysed and 
considered, et cetera, and I don’t think the Commission would disagree 25 
with you there at all.  But one of the things that sort of I just note - I think 
this was up on the screen before - the harness racing suggestion was that, 
you know, a facility could have a dog track that ran sort of in almost a 
straight line, although there’s a bit of a dog leg there, so I say it, in it.   
 30 
But is that realistic?  I mean, are we talking about a realistic scenario 
when you see something - I don’t know whether you saw that diagram up 
on the board.  Is that a realistic sort of a picture to paint where you’ve got 
harness and gallopers going around in circles and the dogs basically 
running on a straight track down the front? 35 
 
MR BRADY:  Senior Commissioner, there are a couple of straight tracks.  
Victoria has a straight track, Healesville.  New South Wales has Appin.  
But primarily the biggest percentage - by and large, they are the only two 
existing straight tracks.  Most people would prefer the circle as we are 40 
currently.  It would probably be - not probably, it would be a backward 
step to go from a circular track we are now, which obviously caters for a 
range of distances from 300 metres through to 600-metre races, and even a 
770 is possible, back to on the straight which are generally - well, 
Healesville, for example, is just 340 metres up the straight. 45 
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SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay. 
 
MR BRADY:  The advantages also of the circular which we have at the 
moment is it sort of all happens in front of you.  Obviously with the 5 
straight track they sort of come from a distance towards you and it’s gone 
in 17 or 18 seconds, and that’s it.  So we would prefer to maintain the 
circular track as we have at present. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay.  No, I just thought I’d just try to 10 
understand a little about the way in which it operates there.  The issue of 
funding from other sources, I mean, we’ve heard again earlier today, from 
the harness people in particular, but that the availability of funding, 
sponsorship, et cetera, from other sources is not that great.  Now, one of 
the things the Commission was trying to say in its draft report was that 15 
while budget funding is assured for the period that the government’s 
announced, that moving beyond that if there’s no national arrangement in 
place there would be a process whereby that budget funding would be 
reduced but recognise that that might need to be matched with funding 
that’s generated from other sources by the Codes themselves, so we were 20 
trying to cover off on that.  But how realistic are we, in terms of thinking 
about funding from other sources, in terms of sponsorships or whatever? 
 
MR DWYER:  It’s realistic for the generating income from secondary 
sources, it’s not realistic the quantum of that generation of income, and I’ll 25 
give a couple of examples.  Whether it’s today or in four years’ time we’re 
hopeful and supportive of ACTTAB continuing and there will still be the 
major generation of income from ACTTAB to the government, that the 
key point is since 1960s and TABs coming into place in every jurisdiction 
as the mechanism to have legalised off-course gambling and return of that 30 
racing income to the Race Codes for the provision of the intellectual 
capital. 
 
The secondary income, all clubs actively pursue secondary income.  At 
the end of the day it’s a very competitive market for sponsorship.  I will 35 
give an example that we’ll be announcing in the foreseeable future with 
the change in Race Fields Legislation.  We had a very competitive process 
for corporate bookmakers interested in providing sponsorship and signage 
to take advantage of the broadcasting available through Sky Channel.  
We’ll be announcing in the foreseeable future a substantial sponsorship 40 
arrangement but I can’t give further details at the moment.  But it’s an 
indication of there is money out there in the right areas for sponsorship.  
We are actively pursuing, you know, lesser sponsorships because it does 
have the advantage of being part of community, and part of community is 
a range of people just want their local sign to say that, you know, I 45 
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provide this service to Canberra and I’m proud to be part of the racing 
industry, and the ask for that sort of sponsorship becomes relatively minor 
but the benefit in being part of community is major.   
 
The other sources of income do include that the clubhouse facilities are 5 
part of community.  The clubhouse facilities we’ve recognised have been 
there for 30 years and as part of our ongoing business plan is part of our 
objectives is to upgrade facilities for the enjoyment of patrons.  Obviously 
whether it’s a house that we buy 30 years ago or any facility becomes tired 
over a period of time and we’ve stood back from the facility and 10 
recognised that refurbishments are appropriate at the moment if we want 
to attract secondary income, as well as the day to day race crowd to enjoy 
themselves on race meetings. 
 
Other minor generations of income become a balance between, as an 15 
example, trials.  We have a charge for trials.  We don’t run at a loss at the 
trials but we see that as a service, whereas other clubs, as you pointed out 
with Wagga, are a good example where they have a very, very high 
volunteer base to cut their costs and therefore if you’re not paying for 
wages whatever you generate in that secondary income becomes a profit. 20 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Fair enough.  That’s interesting just to get 
some idea of, you know, what you’re doing down that particular track, as 
it were, to find alternatives.  We talked about having a single independent 
governing body which the Commission, what we had in mind in putting it 25 
out there in the draft was a body that would basically replace the three 
existing club Boards and be sort of a single body running the total 
industry.  One of the points that you’ve raised is sort of a concern being 
raised in Tasmania, I think you mentioned and Queensland.   
 30 
I was looking at the Queensland material in some recent discussions, there 
seems to be a good deal of difference of views amongst participants up 
there across the industry and, to some extent, from a casual read - and I 
say it’s nothing more than that - some of it went back to the lack of 
planning in advance.  In other words, there sort of was a tendency to thrust 35 
things upon the industry, rather than allow a process whereby the industry 
would address this issue and work through it. 
 
Now, I guess one of the things the Commission had in mind was that 
we’ve got a window of opportunity here in front of us over the next 40 
2/3 years to address this issue.  Would you see that as being still a viable 
way of at least progressing that matter?  In other words, do you see 
advantages in having a single body over the total industry, given where 
the industry is going to, or would you put that aside completely as being 
an unworkable option? 45 
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MR DWYER:  I think there’s a range of reasons we’ve taken into account 
in being not supportive.  The first is the argument around probity that 
we’ve already addressed.  We don’t see one example being held up as 
leading onto a rationale as to it’s seen to be a minor event of 5 
insignificance,  so therefore we don’t consider probity integrity of the 
racing product.  It’s the obverse, we totally concur with probity integrity 
measures.  In that example we can’t see that an overarching body would 
have done or could have done anything better to address the perceived and 
real issues that may have been raised.  We see that any regulatory body 10 
would add an extra layer of bureaucracy and cost to the industry. 
 
In terms of moving to a Tri-Code facility, there would obviously need to 
be a rigorous costs benefit analysis.  What we have seen is that in talking 
to other jurisdictions that have gone Tri-Code the promises and indicative 15 
budgets at the time haven’t translated into reality.  Despite the good 
relationships with both other Codes in the ACT at the moment, the reality 
is in every other jurisdiction that this has happened the minor Codes end 
up losing out in a Tri-Code facility, as in a minor voice amongst the three 
Codes. 20 
 
The issue of the split, we do support for the ease of governance and 
funding arrangements in the immediacy but we do see the need for a 
model to indicate what’s the appropriate split of funding.  We don’t see 
that that needs a regulatory body, we see that that’s a function that 25 
Treasury or like should be able to accommodate, as they do decide at the 
moment with the distribution of the funds. 
 
MR BUSH:  If I could just add to that.  Should a rigorous cross-benefit 
analysis lead to an outcome that a Tri-Code facility is recommended to the 30 
government then issues around merging of structures and racing clubs 
could be potentially then considered.  I don’t know why you would 
necessarily need an independent body first prior, just to initiate a costs 
benefit analysis.  So I guess putting one before the other doesn’t make 
sense in that regard if you didn’t actually then proceed with it.  There was 35 
a degree of confusion in that we got in reading the report around a single 
governance body and merging the three clubs.  So I think that’s probably 
worth noting as well. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  No, look, I take your point on that 40 
and, as I’ve tried to sort of say earlier today and I repeat now, the intention 
was to sort of say there’d be a single body over the total industry and, 
indeed, to address I think one of the points that you’ve raised in terms of 
extra costs and so forth, it was anticipated or envisaged that you’d be 
basically replacing existing Boards by having sort of a single Board over 45 
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the lot.   
 
If I can just come back to that for a minute, and I acknowledge the fact 
that sort of, you know, there’s been a good deal of debate, and there’s 
currently a good deal of debate in Queensland at the moment over the 5 
decision that was taken there and progress on that matter.  But I note that 
the Board that was created up there was predominantly, in fact by and 
large a majority, dominated by the Thoroughbred Racing Board members 
from the previous arrangements with one representative from the 
greyhounds and one representative from the harness racing on that body.  10 
And indeed, I think one of those people was then thrown off.  There’s a 
legal issue going on there, without going into the details. 
 
So I accept the point about sort of concern about the minor clubs, smaller 
clubs maybe being disadvantaged but would you acknowledge that if that 15 
was worked through better, so there was better, not representation but in 
terms of who might be on existing Boards but representation of people 
with an interest across different racing Codes, that some of those issues 
might be addressed? 
 20 
MR DWYER:  I think it’s not apples for apples comparison the ACT to 
Queensland to start off with, and one of the issues is that my 
understanding was that in resumption of some existing greyhound 
property there was substantial benefit, as in substantial return.  So we’re 
not immediately convinced as to the likely return for the sale of the 25 
Symonston land occupied by the greyhounds at the moment, but that is 
why we would also be supportive of a costing - - -  
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  Yes. 
 30 
MR DWYER:  To ascertain market.  In terms of then leading on from 
that, a sale was then - my understanding - promised for what was going to 
happen for a new facility that just hasn’t translated into fact.  The net 
result is Greyhounds Queensland has lost a facility and not regained at 
least a comparable facility. 35 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR DWYER:  That becomes our local concern, is that we’d support a 
robust costs benefit analysis but not give up anything until we’ve got at 40 
least equal somewhere else. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay.  Okay, and dare I say that not putting 
the cart before the horse, in terms of this process. 
 45 
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MR DWYER:  Yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Sorry about this, it’s terrible but it’s going 
to be a long day.   
 5 
MR DWYER:  And as I said, there are a range of then drill-downs for a 
Tri-Code facility that do need nutting out up front to make it a good 
Tri-Code. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Right. 10 
 
MR DWYER:  We acknowledge that one patch of grass mowed by one 
mower by one person is more cost effective than three patches of grass 
mowed by three different people with three different mowers.  Those sort 
of benefits are obvious. 15 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR DWYER:  But the other benefits, the larger benefits haven’t 
translated in other examples we’ve looked at, principally at Tasmania and 20 
Queensland. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes, good.  That’s helpful, thank you very 
much.  I just wanted to tease that out a bit further with you.  Let me just 
touch upon one other matter that others have raised, or I’ve raised at least 25 
with others, and that is the issue of the future viability of ACTTAB.  Now, 
I appreciate that you’re not running ACTTAB and you’re not responsible 
for running it, but everybody’s placing a great deal of reliance upon the 
re-emergence of that entity.  I mean, how realistic do you think that is, in 
terms of the current anticipated betting market and the position from 30 
where ACTTAB currently comes?  Do you have any views on that? 
 
MR DWYER:  A couple of views.  I think initially there was a forced 
situation of being concerned about the performance of ACTTAB and then 
the generation of return to the racing industries, and therefore the leading 35 
onto a solution of certainty with budget line item.  My observation in our 
meetings with ACTTAB of recent time is we’re heartened with the 
improvements in product that have just recently been announced with 
internet and will be forthcoming in service centres in the foreseeable 
future.  We’ve seen some of the benefits of those, so it’s things like 40 
self-service terminals, they are of high interest to part of our market who 
come out locally to the local greyhounds.  They’re familiar with that type 
of facility, it’s self-service at the clubs and are keen to use that at the local 
facility, in addition to the service by the customer of the service officer at 
the window and the local bookmaker.   45 
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There’s also another product that other TABs were offering which is very 
popular called flexi betting.  My understanding is that this is in place on 
the internet but we need to check that factually with ACTTAB but my 
understanding is ACTTAB have looked at that product to bring it in line 5 
to be competitive with other jurisdictions.  I’ll leave it perhaps to 
ACTTAB to clarify the certainty of pooling arrangements with other 
jurisdictions but if there’s to be a review as an example of pooling 
arrangements with the other TABs within the next few years I think that 
needs to be understood and what the possible outcomes of that may mean 10 
for ACTTAB.  And any possible sale of a facility, as has happened in 
other jurisdictions, at least Canberra Greyhound Racing Club’s view is 
that we need certainty of funding from any sold operation.  The vast 
majority of income for the race club is generated via the TAB. 
 15 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  Yes, okay.  I think I’ve pretty well 
covered the points that I wanted to raise with you.  Is there anything else 
that you might want to add or pick up on from the discussion? 
 
MR DWYER:  I think in summary we’ve got a joint submission with the 20 
other Codes, so we won’t go into the full details there.  The three Codes 
have also funded further economic analysis and there’s a presentation this 
afternoon, so I won’t cover that.   
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 25 
 
MR DWYER:  And I think the major issues that we were concerned with 
have been addressed today and any lesser correction type issues or clarity 
issues will be in our final response. 
 30 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Great.  All right, well thank you very, very 
much.  Thanks for appearing and thanks for the submission which I’m 
looking forward to receiving, and also for the presentation discussion 
today.  So thank you kindly. 
 35 
MR DWYER:  Thank you. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  We’ll just take a few moments’ break while 
we move to the next. 
 40 
 
ADJOURNED [12.29 pm] 
 
 
RESUMED [12.32 pm] 45 
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SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Well, we’ll resume the hearing and we 
welcome representatives from the Australian Racing Board.  I’ll get you 
just to introduce yourselves for the purposes of the tape and then invite 
you to speak to your submission or whatever you want to add at this 5 
particular point.  Thank you. 
 
MR BLOOM:  Thanks, Senior Commissioner, my name’s Geoff Bloom.  
Just as a matter of background, I’ve been on the Canberra Racing Club 
Committee for the past 16 years.  During that time, I’ve been Chair for 10 
two terms of four years and Deputy Chair for three.  I was actually the 
Chair when we become a principal club in 2001 and since then I have 
been the representative from the Canberra Racing Club on the Australian 
Racing Board. 
 15 
MR HARDING:  Thank you, Senior Commissioner.  My name’s Andrew 
Harding, I’m the Chief Executive of the Australian Racing Board.  There 
were four matters that I was principally going to address you on today, 
they are the valued added by the ACT racing industry, the national 
character of Australian racing, product payments to the ACT racing 20 
industry, and finally, the Productivity Commissioner and a national 
funding model.   
 
But before I embark on those I might embellish on what Geoff’s just said 
about his role.  The Canberra Racing Club is a member of the Australian 25 
Racing Board and has been since 2001.  That was enabled by legislation 
enacted by the ACT Legislative Assembly to characterise it as a principal 
racing authority under the Australian Rules of Racing.  Before that it was 
treated as part of New South Wales Racing.  Through its involvement, its 
membership of the Australian Racing Board, Geoff Bloom and Pete 30 
Stubbs are vitally involved in the making of the Australian Rules of 
Racing. 
 
Canberra Racing Club, through its membership with the Board, is part of 
Racing Information Services Australia, which is the vehicle that the 35 
Australian Racing Board created several years ago to hold the intellectual 
property rights in Race Fields and to manage the process of generating 
Race Fields, and Geoff himself is part of the Audit Committee of the 
Australian Racing Board and is our representative on the Racing Steering 
Committee which has principal responsibility for developing training 40 
standards for the development of apprentice jockeys and others that are 
licensed to work in the racing industry.  So that the Canberra Racing Club 
is very much part of the national administration of Australian 
thoroughbred racing. 
 45 
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I turn to those four matters.  The first is the value added by the ACT 
racing industry.  Quite appropriately the draft report carefully examines 
the value added by the ACT racing industry, and this includes 
observations on the matter in which the economic impacts generated by 
Australian racing should be determined.  Coming squarely to the point, the 5 
issue that’s proposed is whether value added by the wagering sector 
should be included when assessing the total value added by the ACT 
racing industry, and our answer to that is unequivocally yes.  In our 
submission to you, Senior Commission, racing is the sine qua non without 
which wagering can’t exist.   10 
 
Even with the burgeoning development of sports betting in this country 
wagering on racing still constitutes some 90 per cent of the Australian 
wagering market.  If you take away racing, essentially there’s not a 
wagering market left.  In our submission excluding wagering impacts 15 
when calculating the total value added of racing would be a bit like 
valuing the pig sector without adding sales for ham, pork and bacon.  The 
two go together, wagering and racing.  And indeed, the draft report makes 
this observation which I believe implicitly supports what we’re submitting 
to you when it says at page 24: 20 
 
 “However, the Commission recognises that a parochial view of 

value added taken by all jurisdictions in Australia could result in 
a value destroying outcome.  For example, if all jurisdictions 
ceased funding of racing and the racing industry collapsed the 25 
wagering industry would significantly contract as well.” 

 
The second matter that I wanted to touch on, if only briefly, is the national 
character of Australian racing.  In terms of the Australian racing industry’s 
commercial arrangements, they’ve historically been tied very much to a 30 
state and territory basis, and that’s principally been driven by the issuing 
of licences to wagering operators by state and territory governments and, 
in particular, the issuing of TAB licences by state and territory 
governments.  But an important element of those commercial 
arrangements has always been a national flavour which has been imparted 35 
to those commercial arrangements by what’s been described as the 
gentlemen’s agreement, of which I’ll speak a little bit more later. 
 
If we move away from the commercial aspect for a moment, the sport is 
truly national in character, and this is I suppose most obviously evidenced 40 
by the cross-border traffic of jockeys, trainers and jockeys.  The Perth-
based Fred Kersley with the great Northerly or the Canberra-based legend 
Barbara Joseph winning the Golden Slipper with Catbird.  The headline 
winning horses emerge from every corner of the nation.  The talk of racing 
currently, Peter Moody and Black Caviar.  Peter Moody started Wyandra, 45 
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a railway siding hamlet outside of Charleville in Western Queensland and 
his introduction to racing was the western circuit, Augathella, Quiplie, 
Cunnamulla, Morven, Charleville.  So the Australian racing industry is 
truly a national sport and an important element of that is the Australian 
Rules of Racing, and this is an important comparison in Australia and the 5 
USA, both are federations of states.  In the US, the industry is fragmented 
because there are no national rules, whereas in Australia the Australian 
Rules of Racing are the common railway gauge that regulate the sport 
throughout the country. 
 10 
Marketing is another aspect that is increasingly becoming national The 
Australian Racing Board at its last meeting has given approval to the 
development of a national marketing campaign, and that’s a marketing 
campaign that will deliver benefits to the whole of the racing industry, 
including the Canberra racing industry.   15 
 
Probity, the Commission’s draft report makes important observations 
about probity and the connection between confidence in the probity of 
racing and confidence and spend on wagering, and we agree with those 
observations that there’s a direct interdependence there.  But the public 20 
confidence in the probity of racing isn’t referenced by post code.  If 
there’s a concern about, say the integrity of thoroughbred racing in 
Canberra that infects and contaminates public confidence in thoroughbred 
racing throughout Australia.  And so it is our view that, particularly 
considering the extent to which wagering within the ACT is on Australian 25 
racing, it is only equitable that the funding of the ACT racing sector is at 
such a level as to ensure that that public confidence in Australian racing is 
maintained.  And that will be a product of a number of things: the funds 
that are available to employ stewards to undertake drug testing and prize 
money, indeed.  Prize money at healthy levels is essential to act as the 30 
disincentive to corruption.  So we say to you, Senior Commissioner, 
Australian racing is a national sport with a truly national character. 
 
Come thirdly to the issue of product payments to the ACT racing industry.  
Yes, the ACT racing industry’s races make up 2 per cent of the wagering 35 
of the ACT TAB.  The ACT TAB is a net importer of racing product, but 
then so is every state and territory in Australia bar one.  And the fact is 
that every state and territory’s racing industry is funded by the wagering 
on all Australian racing that is wagered on within that territory, without 
exception.  If you take the example of Queensland only 28 per cent of the 40 
wagering that takes place within Queensland is on the Queensland 
domestic product.  The balance, the overwhelming majority of the 
wagering there, is on the racing that’s generated around the country, and 
yet the product payments that are received by the Queensland racing 
industry are on all of the wagering that takes place domestically.  That’s 45 
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so in every state and territory.  In the ACT that’s historically meant some 
4½ per cent of the wagering that takes place in the ACT is returned, is 
hypothecated to the ACT racing industry, and other states and territories 
the percentage is quite a deal higher.  At its highest point in Victoria, it’s 
6.3 which is influenced to an extent by the contribution that’s sourced 5 
from gaming in that state. 
 
So this is the reality at the moment and Race Fields introduces a new 
element but Race Fields has been grafted onto this: it does not replace this 
gentlemen’s agreement that has always existed.  And so in our submission 10 
to you 98 per cent of the racing on which the ACT TAB trades is interstate 
racing.  The Race Fields charges the ACT TAB pays do not represent the 
full value to the Australian racing industry of that product.  The funding 
which the ACT racing industry receives should continue to recognise the 
value which Australian racing generates for the ACT. 15 
 
Come finally to the question of the Productivity Commission and what it 
has said about the desirability of establishing a national funding model.  
We made an initial submission to the Productivity Commission and then 
commented upon its draft report, and we think there is much that is good 20 
in what the Productivity Commission has said.  But the fact is that, as the 
Commission itself recognised, any move to a national model will be 
largely influenced by what happens at a state and territory level, so far as 
the legal challenges that are taking place to this new framework, this Race 
Fields framework, and that’s an uncertain space.  And it will only be once, 25 
for example the High Court makes it’s finding on the Betfair and the 
Sportsbet matter that we will have the certainty that we require to try and 
predict whether a move to a national funding model is a realistic prospect 
or not. 
 30 
So what we would say to you is that change has been occurring at a rapid 
pace and it will continue to occur, and policy formulation by the 
Commission only sensibly should factor for this; that policy formulation 
should allow for the fact that there will be continuing change in the 
relationship between wagering and racing in this country.  But what we 35 
would also say to you is that there should be, to the extent that it’s 
possible, a strong attempt made to maintain what has been built and 
achieved already, in terms of a racing industry in the ACT.  And achieving 
that will, to the maximum extent you can do this, be engendered by 
providing certainty as to what the future funding of the ACT racing 40 
industry is, as difficult as that task will be for the Commission. 
 
They’re the comments I principally wanted to make, but I anticipate you 
may have some questions and I’m more than happy to answer those. 
 45 
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SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Good thank you very much.  Thank you.  
Let me start towards the end of the questions which are really to do with 
all your points which are really to do with some of the bits and pieces 
coming out of the Productivity Commission report and that uncertainty 
issue, which is the one that is the conundrum.  It really is the one that 5 
faces us as well.  What do you see as being the progress and is the 
likelihood of progress in this area of national approach to funding in the 
foreseeable future?  Do you have some views on that? 
 
MR HARDING:  Yes, the new Victorian Government is through the 10 
COAG process I understand trying to increase the pace of a move to a 
national model, and there’s much in what the Victorian Government is 
saying there that’s very attractive to the racing industry.  But the reality is 
that if the High Court finds in favour of the principal racing authority in 
New South Wales, both as to the constitution of validity of Race Fields 15 
Legislation and the manner in which they have administratively applied 
that legislation, then the capacity to achieve the political consensus 
between the states and territories and the Commonwealth on any move to 
a national model will be very difficult to anticipate as being there, in my 
estimation. 20 
 
In my view, the Federal Government should, in the event that Race Fields 
Legislation is struck down or is found to be administratively inadequate, it 
should move to introduce a national funding model.  But the extent to 
which it has an appetite for doing that is a very different matter, and the 25 
only circumstances in which I could see the Federal Government being 
persuaded to embark on that course would be where there was a very 
strong consensus among the state and territory governments that this was 
essential to the future of the Australian racing industry.  If the High Court 
upholds in all aspects the Race Fields Legislation and the way it’s been 30 
applied administratively then I think it’s questionable whether that strong 
consensus will exist. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  The point was made I think - I forget by 
who but it doesn’t matter - the point was made earlier on that sort of, you 35 
know, that it actually could well be in the interest of some of the corporate 
bookmakers to see a national approach as well, just to get some 
consistency - - -  
 
MR HARDING:  Yes. 40 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  - - - with all the red tape issues and so on.  
Do you agree with - - -  
 
MR HARDING:  Absolutely.  I agree with that.  I mean, both the 45 
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corporate bookmakers and the TABs are - the head of Tabcorp has said 
repeatedly that he believes that a Race Fields approach is too complicated.  
The number of approvals that are required and the compliance burden 
that’s involved with that is something that he’d like to see done away 
with.  I agree with all of that.  As I say, this Australian Racing Board 5 
thinks that much of what the Productivity Commission has said is good, 
but the question I was answering was what I think is likely to happen. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes, yes, I understand.  I understand.  I’ll 
leave that aside for the moment.  You’ve talked a little about sort of the 10 
issue about the value of the racing industry in the ACT and also the issue 
to do with the product payments in the ACT and you’ve, quite 
understandably, sort of drawn our attention to the fact that this is a 
national industry in the way in which the industry operates.  The terms of 
reference for us are a little bit sort of limited, in the sense that they ask us 15 
to address the issues in the ACT and value add in the ACT, what the ACT 
Government might do.   
 
Quite deliberately that extra sentence was placed in the report.  It wasn’t 
an extra sentence but it was quite deliberately crafted and left in the report 20 
when we drafted it to recognise the fact that dealing with this sort of 
jurisdictional level does create sort of a certain degree of sort of limits 
about what one might look at and how one might sort of go about it.  But 
the issue we’re addressing is one that is dealing with the funding from the 
ACT Government, in this particular case through budget funding, thus the 25 
reason it’s come to us for some advice.  Does that influence at all your 
views, in terms of how one should address this particular matter, given the 
fact that, you know, we find ourselves having to look at this from a 
jurisdictional viewpoint? 
 30 
MR HARDING:  I’m sorry, Senior Commissioner, is this directed to the 
question of placing a value on the economic contribution or the - - -  
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  It’s directed towards placing a value and 
then sort of dealing with the issue of how one might sort of ensure that 35 
that value is recovered, as it were, through whatever mechanism.  In other 
words, be it budget mechanism or whatever. 
 
MR HARDING:  Sure.  Look, speaking plainly, the reality is that much of 
this is a question of form over substance.  The funds that are being 40 
hypothecated to the ACT racing industry are funds that are generated from 
wagering and that wagering is wagering on Australian racing.  And as the 
Australian racing industry has evolved an essential element of its 
evolution, indeed, the single most important identifying influence on the 
development of Australian racing compared to, say the UK or the US, has 45 
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been this gentlemen’s agreement.  And the fact is that 98 per cent of the 
wagering that takes place here is on Australian racing, and the attitude that 
Australian racing even Australia’s historically taken has been that so long 
as there is value being returned, or there is a contribution being 
hypothecated to the Australian racing industry, then that’s an acceptable 5 
state of affairs. 
 
But what seems to be implicitly suggested here is that 98 per cent of the 
wagering of the ACT TAB can continue to be on Australian racing and the 
only contribution that will be hypothecated to any element or any sector of 10 
the Australian racing industry will be the 2 per cent that is generated by 
ACT racing for the ACT TAB.  It seems to me that’s a controversial 
proposition when you look to the history.  Now, Race Fields has made a 
change, no doubt, but as I say it’s been bolted onto, it sits on the shoulders 
of this gentlemen’s agreement. 15 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  But to follow through the logic of what 
you’re saying, if we didn’t have a racing industry people are still betting, 
does that mean that sort of, you know, that I’ve then got to come to a view 
that there’s some value of a racing industry that doesn’t exist?  Let’s 20 
assume we didn’t have the facilities and, you know, the clubs and so forth 
that we’ve got, does that mean that I still sort of value that as being a 
racing industry value to the ACT? 
 
MR HARDING:  Well look, and I don’t want to be cute here, I recognise 25 
your reference to - and I understand the reference you make to the 
jurisdictional issues you’re looking at, in terms of through the prism of 
what occurs in the ACT. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 30 
 
MR HARDING:  But I can’t answer that question in a manner that 
divorces it from the central proposition which is that it is not sensible to 
suggest that you can have a wagering industry without a racing industry.  
90 per cent of the wagering that takes place in Australia is on racing.  If 35 
there were no racing, there would be no wagering industry.  That is 
ineluctable.  
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes, and I don’t deny that, my problem is 
that sort of, you know, there still could be wagering without an industry 40 
here in the ACT. 
 
MR HARDING:  Well, there could be wagering but it’d be betting on, you 
know, Australia’s Got Talent and - - -  
 45 
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SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  No, it could be betting on sort of racing 
elsewhere. 
 
MR HARDY:  And betting on sport.  Betting on sport. 
 5 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Racing.  Racing in - - -  
 
MR HARDING:  And it might well be that in 30 years’ time betting on 
sport will make up 30 per cent/40 per cent.  But in terms of the last 
20 years and the next 20 years - and I think that’s a reasonable timeframe 10 
to look at - racing, it’s not just the bedrock, it is what the wagering 
industry generates itself from.  That in my view is simply a statement of 
fact. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  And I accept that you are looking at it from 15 
a national perspective and that’s really the sort of the little conundrum 
we’ve got with this boundary problem. 
 
MR HARDING:  Yes. 
 20 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  I’m not denying your point.  In terms of 
this going back to a model which uses the ACTTAB as being the main 
revenue provider, the main mechanism, have you got any particular views 
on this?  In terms of how realistic that is sort of going forward, 
particularly given the fact that, you know, the market is changing.  I mean, 25 
sort of certainly sort of racing is still a large part of what people bet on  
but - - -  
 
MR HARDING:  Sure. 
 30 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  - - - the reality is that it is changing and 
betting is becoming more predominant on - or larger on other areas. 
 
MR HARDING:  Is increasing, yes.  Look, I may not necessarily be 
saying something that will endear me to my friends from the ACT but I 35 
understand the proposition that spending public funds on racing is highly 
controversial.  I understand that.  I think that where those funds are 
hypothecated from wagering and it’s wagering on racing, then that’s a 
sensible outcome and it’s one that I find it very easy to defend.  But where 
the nexus is broken, to the extent to which the funding - and as I say, this 40 
is not a question of form, but in terms of the substance if there’s a 
disjunction between the amount that the ACT Government can generate 
from wagering on racing and the amount that is being sought by the ACT 
racing industry then there’s a problem.  And you know, racing then has to 
make a case against opera, art, hospitals and schools, and that’s not going 45 
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to be an easy road to go down.  But where there’s not a disjunction, where 
the amount that’s being sought is the amount that’s generated from 
wagering on Australian racing, then I think the industry’s position is 
soundly based. 
 5 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  And you would conclude that the 
gentlemen’s agreement is still very much firmly in place? 
 
MR HARDING:  It certainly is, and as much as the industry is changing I 
don’t see that changing in the near future.  There are no signs of it 10 
certainly.  The Productivity Commission - and I understand from an 
economist’s point of view the concept of a single fee paid by wagering 
operators is a much cleaner one and the concept of being paid for what 
you generate, in economic sense, is very clean, very pure and, you know, 
has all the attributes the economists like.  I understand that, but the reality 15 
is that at the moment that’s a very, very small component of the 
commercial arrangements that underpin the Australian racing industry.  
The gentlemen’s agreement really does account for much of the flows of 
money, and will do for the foreseeable future. 
 20 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Assuming the funding is there and in the 
context of the industry elsewhere in Australia, I mean, how viable do you 
see the ACT Racing - and I appreciate you’re coming from the 
thoroughbred side - racing industry in the context of the changes that are 
occurring in New South Wales and, you know, just the emergence of the 25 
industry in other parts of Australia?  Do you have any views on that? 
 
MR HARDING:  As I view ACT thoroughbred racing it’s robust and 
strong.  You know, sensible decisions have been made, the installation of 
a synthetic track.  It knows its place in the market and it pitches to that.  30 
It’s well run, it’s lean and it can continue to be a viable and robust part of 
the Australian racing industry.  I think I’d have to refresh my knowledge 
of the figures, but I think it’s true that in terms of the wagering around the 
country that takes place on the ACT that is very favourably compared with 
the wagering that takes place on ACT racing within the ACT.  It’s good 35 
product and the advantage of the ACT is its capacity to position itself, in 
terms of dates, time slots and what it offers, to make sure that it finds it 
niche.  So I think that there’s every reason to believe that with a solid 
basis of funding from wagering on racing, not from other sources, but 
with that continuing to be hypothecated to the industry it can have a good 40 
and sound future. 
 
MR BLOOM:  Just as a bit of background, Senior Commissioner, we’ve 
taken and invested a lot of money in the facilities that, you know, back in 
early in after 2001 when I was on the ARB we were part of discussions 45 
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about the leakage of product from TABS to corporate bookmakers.  The 
ACT was one of the first jurisdictions to licence corporate bookmakers 
and they paid a lot of money to the government.  We had a bookmaker 
here turning over $100 million a year at the racecourse paying a million a 
year to the ACT Government and 1 per cent of turnover.  Now, he left the 5 
ACT to go to Alice Springs because it was a third of 1 per cent.  So we 
haven’t kept pace with - and that’s not our doing, it’s the government’s 
doing - with matching the tax rates. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 10 
 
MR BLOOM:  So from that we’d spent probably $8-10 million on the 
course.  As Andrew said, we were the first - or as mentioned earlier today, 
we put a synthetic track in, the first club in Australia to race on a synthetic 
track, and there still isn’t a synthetic track in New South Wales.  And it’s 15 
been a very good product, we’ve put our winter racing on there.  We’ve 
done up the course proper and, you know, there’s jockeys ridden here 
from South Africa and all around the place and they reckon the track here 
is equivalent to anything they’ve ridden on in the world.   
 20 
And so the club has been proactive.  We moved to Friday some time ago 
because a lot of our meetings on Friday because it was a better turnover 
day, waiting for the day when we would get paid for our product.  And 
Ted Quinlan when he was the Racing Minister and Treasurer, I was in my 
first term as Chair, in a number of meetings I had with him about getting 25 
some Race Field Legislation in here to cash in on some of the 
bookmakers’ turnovers.  The ACT Government, with being the smallest 
jurisdiction and I can understand why they didn’t introduce it because they 
could have been sued, just as New South Wales is getting sued now.   
 30 
And so it’s sort of evolved and I’d probably point out too that, you know, 
the ACT Government is discounting the amount of the Race Field 
Legislation money from the return, which is the only state or territory in 
Australia doing that.  Most other states give their TAB dividend plus their 
Race Field Legislation on top. 35 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR BLOOM:  Just could I give an opinion on the - - -  
 40 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Please, yes. 
 
MR BLOOM:  - - - Race Field Legislation?  A lot of jurisdictions are 
10 per cent of gross revenue.  New South Wales is pressing for a turnover 
based model.  Personally I think probably the turnover based model is 45 
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probably the best way because in the months when the corporate 
bookmakers lose they don’t pay anything.  And from discussions that 
have, you know, I’ve been party to I would say some of the jurisdictions, 
if it does go back to a percentage of gross revenue product will up the anti, 
that they’ll up it to, as the Victorians do in the Spring Carnival, 15 per 5 
cent.  It could be something more like 20 per cent.  And in the months that 
the corporates lose, maybe they should pay a third of 1 per cent on their 
turnover in those months.  So that we are getting a proper return from the 
product because, as you’re well aware, the TABs are dropping.  Some of 
the TABs haven’t grown at the same extent they should have, due to the 10 
corporate bookmakers. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  Yes. 
 
MR BLOOM:  So I think that, you know - and as Andrew said, we really 15 
can’t get any surety until we get the decision of the High Court so. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  Yes, I understand.  I understand.  One 
of the things the Commission touched upon was the issue of alternate 
supplementary sources of income and we’ve heard from the various clubs 20 
on that.  Any particular views from experience elsewhere across Australia 
in this area?  I mean, is that a realistic area for some degree of income and, 
if so, what proportion do you think? 
 
MR HARDING:  Look, Senior Commissioner, we’re the observe, you 25 
know, sort of the mirror image perhaps of other sports.  Other sports, to 
the extent that they have major revenues, it’s revenues from TV rights, 
and for us TV rights have historically not been valued that highly, most of 
it’s come from wagering.  Now, the industry has done in some quarters a 
lot of good work to try and ensure that that value which does lie in our TV 30 
rights is extracted.  The establishment of Thoroughvision by the Victorian 
Country Clubs and three metropolitan clubs and the STC and the AJC 
went a long way towards achieving that.  But how much juice is left in 
that lemon is very questionable.   
 35 
Historically - when I say historically, if you go back say, you know, 
30 years racecourse attendances were much more important, in terms of 
source of income for race clubs.  The racing audience hasn’t shrunk but 
the audience that attends race meetings has shrunk because they simply 
don’t need to.  They can hear it, they can watch it.  Attendances are still 40 
strong.  I mean, ABS in its 2010 paper reported that Australian 
thoroughbred racing was second only to Australian Rules.  1.9 million 
Australians attend at least one race meeting a year so it’s 11 per cent.  I 
think AFL 16 per cent.  So it’s still a very attractive product for people to 
watch and it’s still a very attractive thing to do to go to the races, but 45 
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undeniably there’s been a shift, in terms of the way people consume 
racing.   
 
So the prospects of gate receipts and what goes with that, in terms of 
hospitality, beverage sales, hospitality, that’s unlikely to be a new river of 5 
income.  So it’s a matter of, you know, being as smart as you can and as 
good as you can at getting sponsorship, making sure that your facilities are 
as good as they can be, that your sponsors are taken care of, but I don’t see 
on the horizon any, you know, new river that’s suddenly you’re going to 
be able to tap into as a source of income for the racing industry. 10 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  The Commission in its report talked in 
terms of maybe having a single entity that govern the three Codes and 
then, without going into great details, talked about maybe possibilities of 
some joint facilities or something of that nature, sort of as a better way to 15 
try and sort of position the industry in this part of the nation for the 
challenges that lie ahead.  Have you got any views on those two particular 
issues? 
 
MR HARDING:  Well, as I view it from a national vantage point, it has 20 
made sense in, say for example Tasmania, to see a combined approach 
taken to particularly the integrity functions and some of the racecourse 
management functions, and that’s purely a product of scale.  It didn’t 
make sense to have three separate sets of administrators being responsible 
for the same matters.  And then if you go to a club level someone 25 
eloquently referred to the mowing analogy, and that makes sense too.  
And within the Thoroughbred Code that’s made practical sense, say for 
example, in Queensland with the merger of the Queensland Turf Club and 
the Brisbane Turf Club, with only a road dividing them the mowing 
analogy had special potency.  We used to refer to that road as the “Gaza 30 
Strip”, now that’s happily history and we see it a united club. 
 
But I have to say also that, in terms of whether it works beyond where it 
might deliver benefits, this three Code approach.  Whether it works 
beyond that to me is questionable when I consider that as friendly as we 35 
are, and as much as we cooperate we are competitors and probably the 
biggest issue that we compete about is time slots, and time slots will, in 
large part, determine the extent to which we take or concede market share.  
Friday nights are highly prized now and that’s going to be a direct source 
of conflict between the three Codes of racing.  And I’m not yet clear about 40 
how you, within a single governance model, resolve that. 
 
You know, the reality is that thoroughbred racing is strong in this country.  
Greyhound racing is increasing in popularity.  It’s a very cheap product, 
it’s a very popular product and you can put it on whenever you want.  It’s 45 
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a very transportable commodity too, in terms of when you offer it.  
Harness racing, you know, it’s facing its own set of challenges and, you 
know, in terms of say - and you seem to be very well informed about the 
Queensland model - I think that’s displaying already the difficult 
decisions that will face any Board that’s responsible for determining the 5 
future of three Codes.  One Board determining the future of three Codes, 
it’s going to be an extraordinarily difficult task for them to undertake. 
 
MR BLOOM:  Just adding to what Andrew said, I was a part of a 
feasibility study,  I worked on the working group.  It was commissioned 10 
by the Carnell Government back a number of years ago that looked at a 
3-Code complex. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes, that’s right. 
 15 
MR BLOOM:  So you know, there’s certainly some economic benefits but 
I think it’s been mentioned already here today that we’d have concerns if 
it was - you know, I think the industry should run it themselves, rather 
than have another level of bureaucracy above it or to be at a higher cost.  
But as I say, it is a difficult thing to put together.  Under my first time I 20 
was Chair I actually had discussions with ACT Planning about relocating 
the Canberra Racecourse to Majura Road and that was before we started 
the redevelopment out there.  Unfortunately, at that time ACTPLA and the 
government couldn’t come up with a site, not that they offered us any site 
at all, and it went on for about 12 months and in the end we went back to 25 
Thoroughbred Park and started redeveloping that. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  Yes. 
 
MR BLOOM:  But we could certainly see the benefits of what the value 30 
of that land might be and what the value of a new racetrack that could be 
under Majura Lane, under an aircraft traffic way.  But as I say, at that time 
it didn’t happen. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Right.  Yes, okay.  Good, thank you for 35 
that.  I appreciate that.  I think I’ve covered the points that I wanted to 
from what you raised.  You are putting together a written submission, I 
think.  There’s something coming from you, isn’t there? 
 
MR HARDING:  Separate submissions.  There’s one from the Australian 40 
Racing Board - - -  
 
MR BLOOM:  I’ll be the other one, yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes, yes, that’s right, yes. 45 
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MR HARDING:  Yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  No, thank you for that.  Well, is there 
anything further that you might want to add at this stage, as I think we’ve 5 
just about covered it, and I accept the points you’ve made.  Well, thank 
you very, very much for coming. 
 
MR HARDING:  Thank you, Senior Commissioner. 
 10 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  I greatly appreciate that.  We’re going to 
take a break now for a little under an hour.  We’ll resume at 2 o’clock and 
at that time we’ll be hearing initially from the Allen’s Consulting Group 
and then followed by someone from Access Economics early this 
afternoon.  So thank you all. 15 
 
MR BLOOM:  Thank you. 
 
 
LUNCHEON ADJOURNMENT [1.13 pm] 20 
 
 
RESUMED [2.13 pm] 
 
 25 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Well, if we can just resume now for the 
afternoon session of the hearings into the Racing Inquiry.  We have 
appearing now Dr Jerome Fahrer from Allen’s Consulting Group and I’ll 
allow you to introduce yourself for the purposes of the tape, and then 
invite you to speak. 30 
 
DR FAHRER:  Thank you, Commissioner.  I’m Jerome Fahrer of Allen 
Consulting Group and I’m here with my colleague Dan Bunting.  We 
thank you for inviting us to appear today, and so we’re here to talk about 
some work that we’ve done for the Canberra racing industry, that is the 35 
three clubs, the Canberra Racing Club, the Canberra Harness Racing Club 
and the Canberra Greyhound Racing Club on the economic value added 
ACT racing.  We will be putting in a submission in due course and we’ll 
be speaking to the findings of our work today.   
 40 
Unfortunately, you don’t have our submission yet, it’s in the process of 
being finalised.  As you’ve got on screen a small presentation, we also 
have a table of some data which I will table, it’s not on screen, which 
we’ll also talk to.  So what I thought we’d do is we’d talk to the issues we 
want to talk about and then you can ask us some questions.  45 
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So if we can just move on to the next slide.  These are the three things we 
want to talk about, and it’s the economic valuation of ACT Racing 
provided in your draft report.  We think it should be re-examined on three 
grounds.  As far as the direct value added, we think there’s a technical 5 
error in the draft report and Dan will speak to that.  And correcting that 
leads to large change in the estimate on that methodology of the economic 
value of the industry, it more or less doubles once you correct the error.  
On top of that we want to talk about some work we’ve done which links 
the ACT racing industry to the ACT economy as a whole, and then we 10 
want to talk about the synergies between racing and gambling, which we 
think have been underplayed in your draft report. 
 
So in terms of background, the ACT racing industry is an important part 
of the ACT economy, it provides on our estimates 500 full-time 15 
equivalent jobs across a wide range of skills and ACT Racing is a large 
part of the entertainment and sporting landscape, it hosts over 100 race 
meetings per year which draw crowds from the ACT and from interstate.  
And of course when people come from interstate or out of the ACT they 
come and spend money inside the ACT, and that’s a large part of the value 20 
added. 
 
Now, on the links to the gambling part of it all, and here’s where I will 
refer to this table that I’ve given you.  As everybody knows, there is a 
historical interdependence of racing and wagering through funding, 25 
information, the integrity of both, and the importance of media and 
broadcasting, and that rather cryptic note “EGTAB” means the 
broadcasting for the TABs.  We think the ICRC should give greater 
consideration of the independence.  Now, we’ve got a chart here which we 
can talk about but we actually don’t think this, on reflection after we sent 30 
this to you, is the most important point.  The most important point is in 
this table that I’ve given you which, unfortunately, you can see but the 
people in the audience can’t. 
 
Now, what we’ve got here is a table by state and territory of measures of 35 
wagering across different measures.  Now, you don’t have to look at the 
whole table.  In fact, it’s the first two columns that are important.  So in 
the first column which we’ve called “wagering by residence” you see for 
each state and territory it adds up to 100, so they are percentages for 
Australia, and what that shows, for example, is that New South Wales, 40 
betting by residents of New South Wales is 41½ per cent of the total for 
Australia, Victoria is 26.6, Queensland 18.9 and so on.  So that’s more or 
less proportional to population.  This data comes from the PC report on 
gambling, in turn sourced from Betfair I believe, and for that reason the 
data on Western Australia and Tasmania may not be quite right, so we 45 
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don’t want to emphasise those two states, but that doesn’t matter for our 
purposes today. 
 
Wagering on jurisdiction racing in the next column along also adds up to 
100, so they are also proportions.  So we see New South Wales with 31.  5 
What does that mean?  It means 31 per cent of betting in a wagering in 
Australia is on New South Wales racing, 33.8 is on Victoria, and so on.  
Well, so what?  Well, what these two columns tell us is who imports and 
who exports racing.  So New South Wales is an importer of racing.  In 
effect, New South Wales punters bet a lot more on interstate wagering 10 
than the rest of Australia punters spend on New South Wales wagering.  
Victoria is an exporter, not surprising, due to the popularity of Victorian 
racing, especially the Spring Carnival. 
 
But the important point in all of this is the ACT figures where we see that 15 
the ACT contributes 0.7 per cent of wagering in Australia, but 0.6 per cent 
of wagering in Australia is on ACT Racing.  In other words, ACT is in 
effect neither an importer or exporter of racing.  The point being that ACT 
Racing is actually quite important, relatively speaking, to the rest of 
Australia.  So when you say, or other say that ACT Racing is no big deal 20 
because only 2 per cent of wagering in the ACT is on ACT Racing and the 
rest is on interstate racing we think that actually misses the point, the point 
being that the ACT Racing pulls its weight relative to its size, being 
neither an importer nor an exporter net, rather like Queensland.  You’ll see 
that those two numbers are about the same for Queensland as they are for 25 
the ACT.  So that’s it in a nutshell. 
 
While ACT Racing and betting on ACT Racing is small in the national 
scheme of things, as you would expect, given ACT’s share of population 
and other factors, it’s a 2-way interaction.  Act residents bet on interstate 30 
racing, interstate residents bet on ACT Racing.  So this disconnect which 
is stated in the draft report we think is not quite there, in fact it’s not there 
at all, and that has a lot of implications, the main one being that, as with 
other jurisdictions, racing and wagering are highly connected and, in fact, 
it doesn’t make a lot of sense to consider the value add of each 35 
independently because they are, in effect, one industry. 
 
Having made that point let me turn to the value added issues of how you 
actually measure them, and at this point I’m going to turn to my colleague 
Dan Bunting who is somewhat of an expert in value added measurements, 40 
input/output tables, and so on, having spent a considerable portion of his 
life before joining my firm recently in the Commonwealth Treasury doing 
just this.  So I’m going to stop talking now and hand over to Dan who can 
talk about it. 
 45 
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DR BUNTING:  Thanks Jerome.  I’m just having a brief chat about the 
valuation, the direct valuation, the value add.  So at this juncture we note 
that the report says to focus only on direct value add provided by the 
industry and this, before we even move onto the idea of why indirect 
effects might be important and why the effect of ACT Racing on other 5 
industries might be important, and this is just a brief technical thought, I 
guess, about how we’d measure value add. 
 
So we note from the report that ABS Table 868 which is the valuation of 
sport and recreation services in Australia.  A more traditional or a more 10 
normal way to value value-add of an industry would be to go to the 
input/output table where all of this can be done just on the one table and in 
a highly sort of accepted, highly used publication.  So we’ve measured 
direct value add from ABS catalogue 5209 with a brief look at 5215 which 
breaks the input/output tables into more product detail.   15 
 
Using the ABS input/output tables from 2004/2005 to keep things in the 
same year from the ICRC’s report we find that the total value of racing in 
Australia is about 2.3 billion.  That’s somewhat higher than the measure 
of total racing from the report and the industry that racing belongs to value 20 
add makes up about 34 per cent of total output of the industry.  So using 
these two measures from 2004/5 we can actually get direct value add of 
racing in Australia of 800 million, which is directly comparable to the 
285 million in the ICRC’s report.  If that’s then used to infer direct value 
add we estimate it to be about 25 million, so roughly triple the number in 25 
the ICRC report, and that’s measuring the exact same measure.  It’s just 
from perhaps a more robust top down perspective, and there is a detailed 
sort of breakdown about how we calculate the 25 as a measure, but just as 
a starting point we think that that’s one of the areas that we can perhaps 
clarify the valuation of ACT Racing. 30 
 
DR FAHRER:  Well, we think what you’ve done, and it seems to be an 
error that the ABS has made, is that the ICRC’s estimate seems to be 
based on a measure of value added which just includes the wages and 
salaries, and not surplus in the industry, at least as far as we can tell.  But 35 
in any case, doing it the more conventional way we get a much larger 
number for value add.  This, I might emphasise, is direct value add which 
we think in itself is an underestimate but at the most conservative estimate 
of the value add for the industry we think is - well, I said twice, it’s 
actually three to five times the valuation in your draft report. 40 
 
More to the point though, we think that it’s not correct to exclude indirect 
measures and so what we’ve one is estimate indirect measures using the 
Monash computable general equilibrium model of the Australian economy 
and, in particular, the Australian Capital Territory.  Now, I’m not going to 45 
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go into a long explanation about CGE modelling, Commissioner.  Your 
colleague Mr Thorpe knows all about it and there’s explanations in the 
submission.  The important thing about CGE modelling is that it links all 
industries, but it does so in an economically robust way, recognising that 
resources are finite and things have to add up in the economy.  Now, 5 
that’s a rather crude way of describing it, but it’s nonetheless accurate and 
perhaps most importantly for the purposes of our submission in these 
hearings, it gives conservative estimates of value added or economic 
impact, unlike other ways of going about these things. 
 10 
So we have done that and used the Monash model to estimate the indirect 
benefits, or the indirect impact of the industry and the key economic 
mechanisms being, as I said, the links upstream and downstream from the 
racing industry to the ACT economy more generally and, furthermore, the 
Australian economy generally.  And when we do that we find that the 15 
impact of ACT Racing on ACT gross state product is about 50 million, so 
that’s double our estimate of the direct impacts and six to 10 times your 
estimate of the economic impact. 
 
So we’re now in the territory or in the realm of much larger estimates for 20 
the impact of the industry, and that is assuming that there’s no connection 
to the wagering industry.  We only get to that in a minute.  So even then 
it’s conservative at 50 million.  You can see on screen that what the size of 
the GSP estimate is.  In our submission we go into more detail about other 
macro-economic aggregates where we test what would be the impact on 25 
the ACT economy if there were no racing industry, and it’s quite profound 
in the scheme of things.  So gross state product down by about 50 million, 
or 54 to be precise.  Private consumption, which is as good a measure of 
economic welfare as you’ll get in using these models, would be lower by 
even more, by about 60 million.  Business investment would be down by 30 
about 7 million and there’d be about 450 fewer jobs in the ACT economy. 
 
So this is not peanuts and, you know, relative to the size of the ACT, for 
the ACT as a whole, and we think it’s important to put out in the public 
arena that the ACT racing industry actually does make a significant 35 
contribution to the ACT economy.  We’re not saying it’s the Federal 
Public Service, you know, or anything like that, but it’s big nonetheless 
or, you know, big enough to take seriously nonetheless.  But as I said, this 
is a conservative estimate and that’s without taking into account - or 
assuming that the gambling industry or the wagering industry would 40 
continue regardless absent the racing industry we don’t think that’s 
realistic, given the interactions between them, the interdependencies 
between the industries, or the components of the industry, perhaps I 
should put it that way. 
 45 
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When you consider the interdependencies between racing and 
gambling/wagering, the impact on the ACT economy of those two we 
estimate to be around $90 million.  So now we’re talking real money here, 
quite a bit bigger on any measure than is contained in your draft report.  
And you know, in our submission we’ll go into more detail about which 5 
industries in particular would be affected, or are impacted by racing and 
gambling.  It’s not all equal, it tends to vary, but what we have on screen 
is the macro-economic aggregate.  
 
We could also talk about the effect on the ACT budget or the ACT 10 
Government absent the racing industry and on our estimates it’s 
$3.5 million.  I’ll just quickly ask my colleague. Okay, so when 
considering the racing industry just independently of the wagering 
component, take away the racing industry the ACT Government budget 
declines by $3.5 million and, by implication, more absent the gambling 15 
industry as well. 
 
So unless there’s more you think we should say, Dan.  I suppose we can 
go through the rest of these slides but I think we’ve pretty much talked to 
them.  Yes, that’s it.  We’ll stop talking now and be very pleased to take 20 
questions. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Good, thank you very much.  I look 
forward to receiving your submission because that’ll give me a chance to 
look in some detail at some of the things that you’ve done.  In the 25 
multipliers that you applied you used the full consumption and production 
multipliers? 
 
DR BUNTING:  We actually did CGE analysis, so we didn’t apply 
multipliers, as such. 30 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  But you suggested before that it had direct 
and indirect effects. 
 
DR FAHRER:  That’s right.  So I mean, things get multiplied but we 35 
don’t use multipliers as, for example, the ABS’s book of multipliers.  We 
don’t use that.  I mean, that - - -  
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  But the full CGE model - - - 
 40 
DR FAHRER:  Yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER: - - - if you run that through did you run it 
with full production and consumption multipliers?  Or you just ran it sort 
of as a - let me sort of turn it around the other way.  It’s having worked 45 
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with Dicko and so forth as part of sort of the Monash model one of the 
first rules that we applied to anything was apply the ‘giggle test’.  Having 
run the numbers - that’s why I look forward to seeing your submission - 
the first thing Peter would always do with his model would be we would 
apply the giggle test to see if it made any sense, which is what I’ll do 5 
when I see - - -  
 
DR BUNTING:  Giggle test did you say? 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  The giggle test is whether or not it makes 10 
any obvious sense when you look at the sort of the numbers that you’re 
getting out to it, and you start asking some questions as to sort of why are 
these numbers being driven from the model? 
 
DR BUNTING:  Well, one sort of basic ‘giggle test’ that we applied, 15 
being familiar with that, is we looked at the - we shocked an industry and 
in terms of jobs we actually ended up with indirect - basically 500 jobs 
were lost in the racing sector, we only lost 450 jobs.  So it wasn’t this 
cascading - you know, it did come up with a conservative believable idea, 
in terms of jobs. 20 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Good.  Good.  And with the work, as I say, 
I have to look at the full submission and so forth when you send it to me 
because it’s a bit hard to, you know, sort of pick up all the - I understand 
your points but pick up sort of where the numbers might go.  When you 25 
looked at this you made the comment earlier on about the sort of the fact 
that the impact on the ACT economy largely comes from the people from 
outside the ACT who come into the ACT. 
 
DR FAHRER:  Yes, I don’t think we said “largely” - - -  30 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Well, sorry - - -  
 
DR FAHRER:  - - - including.  I mean, I wouldn’t want to claim that these 
results are driven by interstate visitors. 35 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  So in other words, you included sort of the 
expenditure by people within the ACT in the sort of the model for 
purposes of churning out those sorts of results. 
 40 
DR BUNTING:  We ran a shutdown of the ACT racing industry 
simulation.  Now, it’s not necessarily expenditure on racing, there is all 
the flow on impacts from the decline in employment. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  I understand.  I understand.  But what did 45 



Racing Industry Inquiry    JEROME FAHRER  
22 February 2011     
Merrill Corporation 

70 

you do about the diversion of people’s expenditure they would have 
otherwise spent on racing in the ACT? 
 
DR BUNTING:  So people would be consuming a bundle of goods in the 
ACT or - - -  5 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Well, they’d be doing something with it 
sort of, yes. 
 
DR BUNTING:  Yes.  Well, they weren’t spending on ACT racing 10 
anymore.  Within the model they can still consume a bundle of goods.  
The main impact of it’s coming from, you know, the decline in 
employment. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  So you - - -  15 
 
DR FAHRER:  Well, lets cut to the chase.  I mean, they’ll still be 
spending the same amount of money, just not on stuff produced in the 
ACT, such as the racing industry. 
 20 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  That’s what I’m just trying to clarify.  
When you sort of ran the sort of the model you took into account sort of 
the diversion of expenditure. 
 
DR BUNTING:  Yes. 25 
 
DR FAHRER:  Yes. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  By sort of residents of the ACT towards 
one thing versus another.  You seemed to say at one stage - and again I’ll 30 
look at the submission closely, it’s a bit hard to pick it all up here now - 
but you seemed to say at one stage also that people weren’t going to be 
gambling elsewhere.  Did I pick that up correctly or - - -  
 
DR FAHRER:  I don’t think so. 35 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  - - - have I misunderstood your point? 
 
DR FAHRER:  I think they are going to be gambling. 
 40 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  If the ACT racing industry doesn’t exist. 
 
DR BUNTING:  Are you talking about the difference between the 50 and 
the 90? 
 45 
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SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  I’m talking about - well sorry, I’m just 
picking it up in terms of the comment you made before as to sort of, you 
know, where people are going to be spending their money.  I’m trying to 
understand sort of to what extent you’ve taken into account diversionary 
expenditure and to what extent you’ve sort of included all in one industry 5 
and not another.  Again, the full submission I’ve got no doubt will cover 
this point. 
 
DR FAHRER:  Yes.  Well, are you asking - I mean, we’re not assuming 
they’re not going to be spending money, if that’s what you’re getting at. 10 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  No, no.  But I thought at one stage you 
suggested that you were assuming they weren’t going to be gambling. 
 
DR FAHRER:  No, I don’t think I said that. 15 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Okay, I stand corrected if that’s the case. 
 
DR FAHRER:  If the record says that I did say it it’s not what I - - -  
 20 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  You didn’t mean to say that.  No, I take the 
point.  As I say, you know, I’ll look closely at the submission.  Now, in 
the submission when you put it in you referred to a number of publications 
and documents, so I will go to those and look at them.  So you know, do 
make sure that you’ve got the references there because I will follow that 25 
through.  I have lectured in economics in the input/output area and have 
reports in that area, so I’m not unfamiliar with the areas and the issues that 
you’re raising and the points that you’re raising, which I’ll be looking at 
very, very closely. 
 30 
DR FAHRER:  Well, we certainly hope that you do.  We’re not asking 
you to take anything we say at face value. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  No, no, I understand.  Understood.  So in 
terms of then the work that you’ve done, is it focused primarily upon 35 
those sets of numbers or is there anything else that you’ve picked up?   
 
DR FAHRER:  No.  I mean, what we’ve done here in 20-odd minutes is 
summarise our work.  There’s nothing that we’ve done that we haven’t 
talked about. 40 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Fair enough.  And so you haven’t, in the 
process of considering this matter, built into your CGE modelling the 
issue to deal with transference of money from government sector to this 
industry to fund its activities, in terms of playing around with shock 45 
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processes there as to what might happen? 
 
DR FAHRER:  I think the answer to that question is no, unless it’s 
implicit in the model, but we haven’t created extra shocks, if that’s what 
you’re referring to. 5 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes, fair enough.  Yes, I just wasn’t quite 
sure whether you’d run the model in some other ways as well to look at 
that.  I think until I read the rest of the document there’s not much more I 
can sensibly sort of discuss because we’ll get into technicalities which I 10 
don’t have all the facts in front of me, and so it’s a bit hard to have a 
sensible discussion around those.  So unless there’s something else you 
want to say I think I’ve pretty well covered my points.  You can see the 
issues that I’m sort of going to and I’ll be looking for in the document 
when you pass it up. 15 
 
DR FAHRER:  Look, Commissioner, I think we take your point.  They’re 
all good questions, they’re all questions that we’ve, you know, heard 
many times before in the context of this kind of modelling. 
 20 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Sure. 
 
DR FAHRER:  And they’re all perfectly reasonable points to raise, but I 
think you’ll find that we have passed the giggle test, to use that 
expression. 25 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Good. 
 
DR FAHRER:  Or as the Deputy Secretary of the Treasury calls it, the car 
park test. 30 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  That’s right. 
 
DR FAHRER:  That is after you get your results you get around and walk 
around the car park and ask “Does this make any sense?”. 35 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Exactly.  Exactly. 
 
DR FAHRER:  So perfectly reasonable questions to ask but we think 
we’ve covered it off in the work that we’ve done and in the write-up 40 
which you’ll see in due course. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Excellent. No, that’ll be great.  Look 
forward to sort of actually receiving them and no doubt if I want to 
follow-up I’ll give you a call and have a chat. 45 
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DR FAHRER:  Very pleased to answer your questions. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  That’d be great.  Thanks for that. 
 5 
 
ADJOURNED [2.41 pm] 
 
 
RESUMED [2.44 pm] 10 
 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Well, we welcome Steve Corcoran from 
Access Economics and we had the opportunity to read some of your 
material before, so we’re looking forward to your submission today which 15 
I understand you’re providing as part of something you’re doing for the 
racing industry.  So hand over to you. 
 
MR CORCORAN:  Thank you, Commissioner, and thanks for the 
opportunity to talk to the hearing today.  I’ve got a few slides prepared 20 
that I’ll run through.  As you mentioned, Access Economics has been 
commissioned to prepare various statistics on product fees for racing, on 
economic impacts and to comment on product fee issues facing the 
industry, and we provided a submission at the issues paper stage, and I’ll 
take those as read, I won’t cover that ground.  I gather from the draft 25 
report that’s obviously been looked at closely and referenced at several 
points during the draft report.  
 
So I might talk first in broad terms about some of the draft report 
conclusions, and one of the key findings, I guess, relies heavily on the 30 
ACT Government being able to continue operating a retail wagering 
monopoly while reducing product fees to the racing industry and, indeed, 
at some of the earlier hearings today, even talk of you know whether the 
industry should exist at all.   
 35 
Now, to be I guess providing that advice to the ACT Government, with 
respect, that they can harvest this money and use that for other purposes 
without supporting the racing industry I think carries a number of risks, 
and I’m not sure those risks have been fully canvassed in the draft report.  
That you’re able to operate a retail wagering monopoly while not 40 
supporting the racing industry is something that could face numerous 
challenges and that money might be difficult to extract out of that business 
and then put to other government priorities, or the like. 
 
There’s also to the extent that a retail monopoly exists to the extent with 45 
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the racing industry’s good grace, to the extent it serves the racing 
industry’s purposes if it was decided to try to operate that monopoly 
without providing a reasonable level of support to the racing industry 
there may be various ways in which that could be challenged, I guess, and 
it doesn’t seem quite as straightforward that that money can just be 5 
harvested.  Indeed, if it could be you wonder why the government has 
been doing it for so many years where they could have harvested that 
hollow log and put that money to other purposes many years ago instead 
of closing schools or other tough decisions that the government’s made if 
there was such an easy free kick, if you like, of revenue that could be 10 
extracted from ACTTAB and not given to the industry, that why hadn’t 
that happened before now is I guess an interesting question.  Probably 
because it is actually a bit harder to do than I think the draft report has 
perhaps given credit to. 
 15 
The funding arrangements in the draft report, there’s a variety of options, 
one being that we’ve heard today about turning ACTTAB around, getting 
ACTTAB back into a better performance, and then that might make it 
more sustainable as a way of funding the industry.  Another one is a 
national product model.  Both of those seem to be outcomes that are fairly 20 
unlikely, unless the High Court does something interesting or ACTTAB 
has a stunning turnaround, both of those outcomes seem quite unlikely.  
So that the most likely outcome as the draft report currently stands is that 
you’ll have this sort hybrid sort of arrangement where you’re kind of in no 
man’s land, if you like.  You don’t have a long-term funding model linked 25 
to ACTTAB, you don’t have a national funding model, you’re sort of in 
this uncertain zone over what your future product fees will be.  And in that 
environment it’s quite difficult to consider undertaking the investments 
necessary for something like a 3-Code complex. 
 30 
I mean, there are some very interesting ideas floating around that you 
could create a new high tech racing facilities for the three Codes, that you 
could free up land at Symonston and out at near Northbourne Avenue 
there where the current racetrack is, and also what happens at EPIC can be 
then used to, you know, expand the facilities at EPIC for other purposes.  35 
There’s all sorts of things you could free up and then put that money 
towards other things, but to actually undertake those investments with the 
amount of uncertainty that’s been created by where the draft got to is 
something that I think is probably unlikely to happen.  So there probably 
needs to be some thought given to the uncertainty.  In fact, even at the 40 
existing facilities it would be very hard for a trainer, for example, at the 
moment to invest in any new facilities or upgrades to stables, or any kind 
of investment knowing that the industry may cease to exist or become a 
lot smaller than it is now in a few years’ time.  So I think that uncertainty 
issue is probably something that’s going to be hanging over the industry if 45 
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the final report was to reflect the draft report. 
 
One of the conclusions in the draft report was that the ICRC argued that 
wagering in the ACT is relatively independent of the racing industry.  The 
reference is there in blue italics.  The draft report also argues in a few 5 
pages before and after that that problem gambling is an output of the 
racing industry.  Now, I found that quite difficult to reconcile those two 
positions.  It seemed to be there were different authors of different parts of 
the report and that you can’t blame problem gambling on the racing 
industry at the same time you say that wagering is relatively independent 10 
of the racing industry.  So I thought that was an area you might want to 
tighten up in your final report. 
 
The other area where I thought there might be some possibility for 
tightening up the report is in some of the citations.  Access Economics got 15 
quite a lot of mentions in the draft report, and we thank you for that and 
are glad that our submission received so much detailed attention, but 
there’s some areas where we’re perhaps given credit for things that we 
didn’t really do.  For example, in terms of the future funding, the primary 
source from that which I quoted in my submission which was then 20 
referenced to Access Economics was actually a letter from Minister Barr 
to the Canberra Racing Club’s CEO, and that’s probably the source that 
should be quoted.  Access Economics didn’t come up with the funding, it 
was actually the Minister that wrote to the Racing Clubs with that 
information and probably should be the person given credit for that.  The 25 
other thing I would mention about this chart that appears a couple of times 
in the report is it’s shown in nominal terms and it does tend to, I guess, 
you know perhaps showing it inflation adjusted in real terms might be a 
fairer indication of what the real underlying trends in funding have been 
over recent years.   30 
 
Similarly, elsewhere in the report Access Economics seems to have been 
given much of the credit for framing the criteria of the investigation, and 
again I’d love to accept the credit for that but I feel I’ve probably been 
given more credit that I really deserve.  In the report it says that, you 35 
know, Access Economics has proposed these criteria for comparing 
funding levels, in terms of turnover and per capita and per full-time 
employee, and so forth.  And then later on saying that it should be noted 
that per capita comparisons across jurisdictions are not an appropriate 
criteria that Access Economics has provided to the Commission. 40 
 
But I guess if we go back to the primary source of those comparisons, it 
was in the Minister’s terms of reference that framed the investigation, 
where the Minister asked the Commission to compare product payments 
with other jurisdictions per capita, per dollar of economic contribution, 45 
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and so forth.  So perhaps that was the place where those criteria arrived 
from, rather than Access Economic although, as I said, it’s nice to have 
received so much of the credit for that. 
 
Now, these criteria were restated in the issues paper and the Commission 5 
asked for submissions to provide information on product payments being 
received by the Racing Clubs, comparisons with other jurisdictions, and 
so forth.  So those criteria were reiterated and that data was requested.  
Now, as a humble purveyor of statistics and economic data I busily went 
off and compiled the information that the Commission had ask for people 10 
to provide to it, and that showed that value added based on our estimates 
was $44 million, employment of 480.  That’s just thoroughbreds there, I 
should mention, not the total three key combined racing industry.   
 
That figure is not vastly different to some of the Allen’s work.  They’ve 15 
obviously used a model based GE approach, arrived at similar 
employment figures and have probably got some more updated figures, 
and also, you know, a constrained multiplier I guess is the best way to 
explain a GE model, rather than just saying an unconstrained multiplier 
because it’s got, you know, the various constraints of the economy 20 
imposed, depending on how, you know, apply the closures in the model.  
But, you know, arrived at, yes, broadly similar numbers of that in around 
the $50 million mark.  If you add in the other Codes and wagering, and so 
forth, you would get higher or lower numbers, depending on which 
envelope you seek to estimate.  But that’s the broad magnitude of what we 25 
sort of felt, and we thought the Allen’s work was another methodology 
that’s a widely accepted methodology that arrived, you know, in broad 
terms some similar sort of numbers. 
 
The next bunch of statistics we provided to the Commission were the 30 
product fees as a percent of wagering and a percent of turnover and 
expenditure, showing that the ACT receives the lowest of all the 
jurisdictions.  The Northern Territory is a bit of an anomaly.  So showing 
there that the product fees received by the racing industry in the ACT are 
quite low on any sort of cross-jurisdiction comparison.  And if you look at 35 
that per capita or per adult again, you get a similar picture, that the product 
fees for the ACT industry are relatively low compared to all the other 
jurisdictions.  Now, you’ve obviously seen all of these in our submission 
to the issues paper, so I won’t dwell on those at length.  But it certainly 
does show that the industry isn’t perhaps as generously funded as the draft 40 
report might have suggested.  There’s the one per the level of value added 
and per FTE.  This shows a slightly different comparison showing that, 
you know, the ACT for the funding that it does get, in terms of the product 
fees it receives, does generate significant impacts, in terms of full-time 
equivalents, value added, and so forth. 45 
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The draft report then goes on to dismiss much of the information that it 
had sought in the issues paper and subsequently supplied by Access 
Economics as being not appropriate, which is fine, I suppose, if you want 
to draw that conclusion.  But I got the sense, looking at the draft report, 5 
hat the ICRC wasn’t entirely happy with the matrix that the Minister had 
asked it to use in valuing product fees.  And rather than perhaps making it 
sound that Access Economics was trying to give you some inappropriate 
data to use to form your conclusions that might be more appropriately 
addressed to the Minister of the issues that you have with your terms of 10 
reference or that you don’t like the way in which the Minister asked you to 
assess these things. 
 
More broadly, the ICRC seems to have taken an industry assistance 
approach when it was asked to place a value on product fees and I went 15 
back and had a look at the terms of reference and I couldn’t see any 
mention in the terms of reference of industry assistance, or even the 
question of industry existence.  We heard earlier today asking about the 
viability or whether the industry should even exist, and that does seem to 
go beyond what the Commission was asked to investigate. 20 
 
Indeed, when I first saw the terms of reference I thought it was a valuation 
exercise and, with respect, in my opinion often when you see, you know, 
regulators being asked to do a valuation of things you’ll see a report 
coming out that talks about weighted average cost of capital and asset 25 
values and, you know, various sort of benchmarks with other jurisdictions 
or across industries to find out what an appropriate, you know, asset 
beater and that sort of thing are for an industry, in order to work out what 
the prices are.  And that’s how I sort of viewed the terms of reference.  
When I saw them I thought that this was a sort of a valuation exercise.   30 
 
Now, not wishing to tell people how to suck eggs, but it did seem quite 
strange when the draft report came out that it went into a whole sort of 
industry assistance debate which didn’t seem to be what the Minister had 
asked the Commission to do, with respect.  So in my opinion the draft 35 
report as it stands doesn’t address the terms of reference.  It doesn’t 
actually really get into the issue of, you know, what are the appropriate 
value of product fees and how do they compare against other jurisdictions.  
That seemed to be the core task in the terms of reference but it hasn’t 
actually been perhaps addressed in the way I guess I was expecting when I 40 
first saw the terms of reference. 
 
The next point I’d like to touch on is the thrust of the submissions.  I guess 
there were a number of submissions on the issues paper and it seems in 
reading those that the draft report does differ markedly from I guess the 45 
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broad thrust of the submissions it received.  So as well as, I guess in my 
opinion, not necessarily addressing the terms of reference the draft report 
doesn’t seem to reflect the consensus of the affected parties on this issue.  
It seems to delve into issues about whether the industry should exist, 
whether the industry is sustainable, whether this sort of industry assistance 5 
should be provided. 
 
I’d like to move now to perhaps discuss some specific issues with the draft 
report.  Up until now that’s sort of more I guess some threshold issues.  In 
the draft report on page 24 it suggests that by comparing Access 10 
Economics with the IER estimates that the industry contracted between 
2005/2006 and 2008/2009.  That apparent contraction was because in our 
work that we did in updating the work by IER we used a different ration 
of expenditure to value added, based on some ABS data.  I’m not sure 
what the IER, how they actually got their ratio but expenditure to value 15 
added wasn’t documented and their report and we couldn’t replicate it, so 
we got the latest figures from the ABS and that is the reason for the 
apparent difference in the $49 million and $44 million, not because the 
industry contracted, but because we used a more conservative ratio of 
expenditure to value added in our work. 20 
 
The next thing I’d just like to touch on is that the ICRC in its draft report 
found that the level of funding to the racing industry will increase the 
percentage of wagering, bringing it close to the estimates for New South 
Wales.  Now, the estimates that we included for New South Wales 25 
excluded Race Fields revenue because of the court matter there.  It was 
still under appeal at the time we provided our submission.  The figures I 
provided for the ACT did include Race Field revenues.  It’s not quite an 
apples with apples comparison being made there.   
 30 
The Commission also discusses at length about Access Economics and the 
earlier IER report about how they estimated racing and wagering, value 
added and expenditure, and so forth, and that it’s not the case - or I got the 
impression from reading the draft that we didn’t provide a breakdown of 
those.  And on page 20 and page 23 of the draft report you have, indeed, 35 
quoted the tables where Access Economics and drawing on the earlier IER 
work do provide a breakdown of the direct spending by racing clubs, the 
direct spending from wagering, and then breaking that down in value 
added in the bottom table to provide a breakdown of wagering, racing and 
then other forms of expenditure and value added.  So those breakdowns 40 
were given. 
 
And in talking earlier about the giggle test the direct value added from the 
Thoroughbred Club alone, based on its 2009/2010 annual report is 
$4.9 million and expenditure was $7.4 million.  Now, the estimates in the 45 
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Commission draft - I’ve got that on a later slide - has the entire industry at 
$5-8 million, whereas it’s readily ascertained from the clubs just the 
Thoroughbred Club alone’s annual report that its value added is 
$4.9 million.  So in terms of the giggle test, not just taking into account 
the training club, the trainers, the vet, you know, the strappers and the 5 
farriers, and all the other participants in the racing industry, and the other 
two Codes, it’s hard to see how the Commission came up with an estimate 
that is barely bigger than the Thoroughbred Club alone itself, let alone any 
of its subcontractors, caterers or other people contracted by the Racing 
Club, and then you go and add in the other Codes and wagering, and so 10 
forth.  So there certainly does need to be some giggle tests done there on 
the Commission’s estimates.  The table 2.5 in the report takes some 
statistics on races and race meetings and divides those to arrive at the 
average number of starters per race.  You might want to check that.  I 
think the label in that right-hand column should be the number of races 15 
per race meeting. 
 
Now, in terms of the benefit that the ACT Government gets from 
ACTTAB, the Commissioner discussed you know the - if I can just go to 
the last sentence there: 20 
 
 “The ACT Government should expect that ACTTAB will be in a 

healthier corporate position.  It shouldn’t expect to receive all of 
the funding freed up by the change in funding arrangements.” 

 25 
I think perhaps a better measure of shareholder returns, or your 
shareholder equity, is to include retained earnings.  So ACTTAB retains 
earnings that it then puts to investing in new systems or puts towards, you 
know, future years’ profits or whatever.  That does go to increase, you 
know, shareholder returns and shareholder equity, and it’s not just the 30 
current year dividends that are the benefit that the ACT Government gets 
from ACTTAB it is those retained earnings that should be included in 
that. 
 
The other thing, in terms of looking at ACTTAB, is I guess not just what 35 
the ACT Government gets from ACTTAB when you include retained 
earnings and other forms of benefits that shareholders receive other than 
actual cash dividends.  It’s also what ACTTAB is capable of doing.  I 
guess everyone’s got a feeling that ACTTAB is under-performing and so 
it’s not just looking at what ACTTAB is generating but what it could be 40 
generating if it was operating at a similar level of capability or innovation 
as some of the TABs interstate are earning.   
 
So part of, you know, the benefit, it’s a bit like how the Commonwealth 
Grants Commission looks at not just taxing effort but taxing capacity.  45 
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You know, there’s a capacity there to do a lot better with ACTTAB than 
has been done in recent years, and so it’s really that capacity rather than 
the actual dividends that’s probably a more realistic assessment of the net 
situation that the government’s in.  It’s perhaps unfair to the racing 
industry to blame it for the poor performance of ACTTAB, in the sense 5 
that, you know, the government’s only getting two-thirds back from 
ACTTAB what it’s giving to the industry, but that’s because of an issue 
with the way ACTTAB’s been governed and managed for many years, 
rather than something to do with the racing industries.  There needs to be I 
guess some benchmarking of what a TAB is capable of returning 10 
interstate, rather than just looking narrowly at dividends they get from 
ACTTAB. 
 
There was a few places in the draft where I felt it seemed to switch from 
racing industry to thoroughbreds.  The work done by Access Economics 15 
looked at thoroughbreds, the work just done by Allen’s looks at the three 
Codes combined.  It’s just something perhaps to be mindful of is that there 
is, you know, different sources around, some talking about thoroughbreds 
and some talking about the racing industry.  So perhaps things could be 
clarified there. 20 
 
There was an issue about Victorian and New South Wales GSP where 
looking at an IER report there was some confusion about how it seemed to 
have New South Wales being smaller than Victoria.  I think that was just a 
typo in the IER report on page 30 where a 0.78 should have read 0.48.  So 25 
I think that’s the cause of that apparent confusion about New South Wales 
and Victorian GSP. 
 
In terms of the economic contribution methodology that the ICRC has 
adopted, it appears to be a, to some extent, non-standard methodology and 30 
it’s based on some broad national averages from 2004-2005 and doesn’t 
reconcile with readily observed economic activities that are occurring in 
the ACT.  So if a non-standard approach is going to be adopted it probably 
needs I guess perhaps more justification with perhaps some citations of 
where a similar approach has been used elsewhere, because it was 35 
different to the way we normally see these sorts of things done, and 
Allen’s touched on that as well in their presentation. 
 
The next thing I’d like to just canvass is the size of the jurisdiction.  In 
some places the ICRC seems to rely on this, you know, small jurisdiction.  40 
We’re dealing with a small entity where wagering and racing are 
relatively independent, and I guess there’s one statistic that’s been relied 
on heavily there which is this 2 per cent of ACTTAB turnover.  The 
wagering industry’s ability to offer bets and operate a retail monopoly 
obvious are a little bit more intertwined and the things are a little bit 45 
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harder to separate than perhaps has been indicated.  But in any case, 
sometimes it seems to be talking about a small jurisdiction and then at 
other times the draft report relies on a big jurisdiction sort of argument or 
even, you know, a national economy argument that if the racing industry 
ceased to exist that those job losses and employment losses and 5 
expenditure reductions would just be reabsorbed elsewhere by people 
spending their entertainment dollars on other things. 
 
One thing we have found in the ACT, you may recall in ’96 when the 
Howard Government cut back the Public Service is that the ACT economy 10 
actually shrunk.  The people actually emigrated away from the ACT.  So 
if there are job losses in the racing industry I don’t think the trainers and 
jockeys will just go and start working at the casino, I think they will move 
to another jurisdiction.  So there will actually be a reduction in population 
from people emigrating and a contraction in the size of the economy, 15 
being a small jurisdiction.  So I don’t think you can rely on just, you 
know, you can stop funding the racing industry, take the wagering money 
and spend that on schools and hospitals, and the economy will stay about 
the same size because, you know, people will just spend their money 
elsewhere.  I don’t think that argument works.  So there’s perhaps some 20 
inconsistencies there that could be, I guess, honed a little in the final 
report. 
 
So in conclusion, in my opinion the draft report could benefit from I guess 
some substantial revision in better reflecting the terms of reference and the 25 
submissions, and I guess the consensus of the affected parties that 
provided submissions.  The focus on sort of industry assistance, or even 
industry existence framework, to return to the issue of, you know, what 
are product fees, how do they compare with other jurisdictions and, you 
know, what’s a sensible amount of funding for the industry based on those 30 
comparitors that the Minister gave in his terms of reference?  You know, 
the focus could perhaps return to that.   
 
And to some extent assessing the risks to ACTTAB and the ACT 
Government from breaking the link between racing and wagering could be 35 
perhaps explored in more detail.  I fear that the if the ACT Government 
was to act on that recommendation and cutting the funding at the end of 
the 4-year agreement that it may be a slightly more complex matter for it 
to harvest that money, and it could be taking the ACT Government down 
a path where there’s lots of complexities and risks, and that there’s not a 40 
simple hollow log that they can harvest which is the impression I seem to 
get from the draft report. 
 
That I guess covers my reactions to the draft report.  Obviously I’ve 
already provided a submission that goes into detail on a number of issues 45 
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and provided all that data on industry impacts and comparisons with other 
jurisdictions, and so forth.  So I’m happy to throw it over to you. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Thank you for that, and thank you for those 
various good comments on matters which we will follow up, in terms of 5 
the referencing and other bits and pieces.  So I won’t go back over those.  
We’ll get a copy of your slides and it’s in your other submission anyhow, 
so it’ll be there for us.  Great, I thank you for that.  The issue of ACTTAB, 
you know, keeps coming up and the question about whether or not some 
of this is really going to be, you know - so you don’t seem to sort of think 10 
it will be, you seem to sort of be of the view that ACTTAB and, indeed, 
the national wagering arrangements probably won’t be in place and 
ACTTAB won’t be performing as well as we would like in the foreseeable 
future. 
 15 
MR CORCORAN:  I think I expressed it in terms of a balance of 
probabilities.  There is a possibility that ACTTAB could turn around, that 
it could become some sort of niche TAB that’s able to resume its role of 
funding the racing industry in return for having a retail monopoly on 
wagering in the ACT.  Yes, it’s a probability.  I can’t put a number on it, 20 
maybe it’s 20 per cent, maybe it’s 50 per cent.  It really depends, I guess, 
on the government’s will I guess to try to reinvigorate that organisation, 
and that’s a whole lot of issues and competition from corporate 
bookmakers, and all sorts of reasons why that’s difficult.   
 25 
And there’s also this issue with the national funding model which depends 
on legal proceedings.  We heard earlier today from the Australian Racing 
Board that it seems that this hybrid model, subject to legal proceedings, 
will probably have some longevity.  It will probably remain the dominant 
funding model that your home based TAB provides you with 80-odd per 30 
cent of your revenues and you get this top-up of about another 20 per cent 
from Race Fields revenue, and that could have considerable longevity and 
there may not be any particular desire by anyone to change that if it passes 
the legal hurdles. 
 35 
Now, that leaves what seems like the larger probability that will continue 
to be in the world, and particularly in the ACT, of some sort of budget 
funding, you know, ACTTAB not quite being up to the mark, a national 
product market not being in place for some period of time.  And as long as 
that remains the situation it is a difficult situation facing the industry.  40 
Which way do you turn?  How do you, firstly, stop this being a problem 
that comes back to haunt the government every year at budget time?  How 
do you stop this from being - you know, is there a way that you can set 
things up in a more sustainable way?  And that’s quite a difficult - given 
that that is where the probabilities seem to be shaking out. 45 
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SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  You know, you commented upon sort of 
the issue of we should be looking at not industry assistance, but rather a 
valuation or value of the product fees issue.  Just to go to that for the 
moment.  The issue the Commission’s thought through a little bit is this 5 
disconnect, as it were, between a model that is just based upon sort of 
taking profits from ACTTAB or a percentage of ACTTAB’s sort of 
profits, et cetera, and sort of linking those back into the industry and sort 
of, you know, what is the value of what the industry produces.  In other 
words, is there a reasonable connection between sort of one and the other, 10 
so that you know the industry is encouraged to improve its product and get 
better Sky 1 viewing times, et cetera, as part of the process of increasing 
that return?  Or is there no sort of real connect there at all?  I mean, what 
do you suggest in this area here?  What views do you have? 
 15 
MR CORCORAN:  Well, while there’s notionally not now a direct link 
like there was under the - you know, where you got a percentage of 
ACTTAB turnover directed to the racing industry there still remains I 
think a number of reasons why the ACT Government can’t harvest that 
money and put it towards other purposes.  If the ACT Government were to 20 
attempt that they might find that it raises a whole lot of other 
ramifications.   
 
Firstly, this might be one possible scenario that under the Trade Practices 
Act ACTTAB’s got a retail monopoly.  Now, I’m not sure if the 25 
arrangements for that or whether that can be tested.  Obviously the racing 
industry’s happy to have retail monopolies while it suits them and it 
benefits them.  If the government were to turn around and no longer 
support the racing industry they might explore whether a retail monopoly 
on wagering still remains the best option, and maybe the racing industry 30 
might like a new wagering operator to come in and start operating retail 
wagering services in the ACT.  Now, it would be difficult for the ACT 
Government to defend ACTTAB’s monopoly, and I’m not sure whether 
under the Trade Practices Act whether it would require special 
dispensation from the ACCC.  You know, there’s quite a lot of complex 35 
issues there.   
 
But it doesn’t seem to me so straightforward that you can just have 
shopfronts where people can bet on horses and then not provide that 
money back to the racing industry.  Because at the end of the day punters 40 
want to bet on horseracing, they like it, it’s an enjoyable activity for them.  
They spend their money, they would expect a percentage of that money to 
be directed back to funding the activity that they like to bet on.  If that link 
ceased to happen, even if it happens indirectly through a budget line item 
rather than a direct percentage of ACTTAB I could see that raising all 45 
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sorts of problems. 
 
Another area where it could impact on the government is through the 
pooling arrangements.  ACTTAB has a pooling arrangement with other 
TABs and that’s due to expire in a few years’ time.  I could imagine it 5 
being difficult sitting around the negotiating table seeking to be part of 
pooling arrangements with other states and territories when you’re not 
supporting the racing industry to the extent that the racing industry feels is 
appropriate. 
 10 
What other sort of possible risks are there facing the government?  
Numerous ones.  ACTTAB’s ability to even, you know, offer bets on 
racing.  There may be legal avenues for the racing industry.  You know, 
under this gentlemen’s agreement they all turn a blind eye.  So you can, 
you know, bet on races in Melbourne as long as you support your racing 15 
industry and we’ll kind of let ACTTAB do that.  Now, there’s a little bit 
of Race Fields Legislation now going to the interstate racing clubs but, as 
I said, it’s only a proportion, maybe a fifth of the industry’s total funding.  
If that became all that ACTTAB did you could imagine that the other 
racing clubs wouldn’t be so happy about that occurring and would feel 20 
that they’re not pulling their weight.  And there may be all sorts of legal 
avenues they could explore there.   
 
Now, I’m not a legal expert on what you can and can’t do when there’s a 
TAB that seems to have become a pariah or something, but they’re all 25 
risks and in advising the ACT Government of a situation where these are 
essentially independent, I think you also have to canvass the wide range of 
risks that, you know, ACTTAB could essentially just become an unviable 
business if some of these scenarios played out, if the ACT Government 
were to adopt those recommendations.  So I just think those risks perhaps 30 
need to be explored further because if there was a $6 million or a 
$7 million hollow log sitting there that, you know, the government could 
get their hands on I’m sure they would have done it many years ago, so 
there must be something there that makes it harder than it perhaps seems 
at first blush to harvest that money. 35 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Now, you’ve done a fair amount of work in 
this industry and, you know, for the industry and taken an interest in it.  
Have you come to any view as to what might be an appropriate funding 
model, in the sense of how one actually populates that model?  So it’s not 40 
just a matter of sort of saying well, sort of you know you got some money 
from ACTTAB, you got some money from product fees or whatever, so 
that’s fine.  But how does one actually sort of go about putting some 
numbers into that as to what it should it be?  Does one equate it to value 
added, however sort of measured?  Does one equate it some other 45 
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indicator?  Does one just apply some sort of a set formula and sort of give 
that to the government and sort of say there’s the magic formula, stick to 
that one and everything will be okay.  Any views? 
 
MR CORCORAN:  It is a difficult question to say what should that 5 
number, because there’s no national market.  There’s no way where the 
punter can say which races they want to bet on and how much product fee, 
and a completely de-regulated wagering market, and therefore you just 
can have supply and demand determining price and quantity.  It’s 
unfortunately not a simple market like that, as we all know. 10 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR CORCORAN:  So what do you do you in a situation where you don’t 
have sort of readily observable sort of market transactions to base, say 15 
valuation on.  Well, that isn’t I think sort of what you’re asking me.  You 
don’t have a situation where - and perhaps one day under a fully 
deregulated model but while we’ve still got retail TAB monopolies and, 
you know, regional TABs and corporate bookmakers, and all this sort of 
thing, it’s quite difficult to work out what that should be.  So I guess when 20 
I grapple with that problem where there’s no observable market 
transaction - I’ve done it in other areas as an analogy for something like 
airport land.  How do you value the land underneath an airport when you 
obviously don’t have a real estate market for buying and selling vacant 
land that you can put airports on?  You look at benchmarks, you look at in 25 
globo land prices and you look at, you know, the average cost of capital 
and what’s that land going to be worth in alternative uses.  You try to look 
at other techniques like that. 
 
So in this situation you try to find arm’s length benchmarks, you try to 30 
look at, you know, what other jurisdictions are doing.  That’s usually a 
good thing.  How is it done overseas?  Probably Australia’s horseracing 
industry is probably more evolved and probably more sophisticated than a 
lot of other jurisdictions overseas, but you can look at what the funding 
arrangements are in other states.  And I think that’s what the Minister was 35 
getting at with his terms of reference.  He said well, how much money 
should be give them?  It’s a difficult one to answer, it’d be great if we just 
let the market rip and let it sort itself out itself, but let’s look at other 
jurisdictions, let’s look per capita, let’s look at you know the dollar’s per 
FTE, let’s look at all these other kind of benchmarks and see if we can 40 
find some kind of amount that sits nicely in that range.   
 
And I think probably the terms of reference did provide, I guess, the 
benchmarks and comparitors and other things that you can use to make 
those assessments when you don’t have a directly observable price for the 45 
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product because of all these issues with the very nature of racing product.  
So I think that there is a bit of a guide there in the terms of reference of 
what can be used to form those valuations.  And it’s difficult, there’s 
probably no one price so you could perhaps look at a way weighted 
average.  Take a weighted average of the other, you know, five major 5 
jurisdictions.  Probably leave out the Northern Territory and Tasmania 
because there’s some curiosities in those jurisdictions.  You know, maybe 
take a weighted average of that and the funding per capita, the funding per 
FTE, per whatever the other things the Minister had in his terms of 
reference.  And then that might give you a way of finding roughly what 10 
the right bucket of money the ACT industry should be receiving, based on 
some decent sort of comparitor. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Just in terms, I mean, I remember just one 
of those issues looking at the dollars per capita.  I mean, one of the things 15 
that worried me was this, you know, we’re nowhere near as large a 
gambling sort of location as other parts of Australia.  Why should the 
ACT match what’s been provided in other parts of Australia who are 
larger gamblers on a per capita basis? 
 20 
MR CORCORAN:  And I think historically the ACT has had a lower 
percentage.  It’s always been 4½ per cent of the ACTTAB turnover until 
the current year, so there has been I guess some reflection of that.  It’s not 
zero.  But I guess that has been reflected through the way things have 
evolved historically that we don’t have the same scale of racing industry 25 
as Victoria does because it’s obviously an industry that they, you know, 
have probably a longer history and a higher profile with.  So you wouldn’t 
expect it to be the same percentage as Victoria but you wouldn’t expect it 
to be perhaps enormously different either.  So I think there’s capacity 
there to perhaps apply a few scaling factors, look at what’s happened 30 
historically, look at, you know, where trends in the industry are going to 
find out you know roughly what is the right level at which these fees 
should be set. 
 
I guess my concern in reading the draft report it was talking about, you 35 
know, removing funding at the end of the 4-year period and some of these 
options being canvassed, and that seemed to be perhaps beyond the 
options that were asked to be canvassed in the terms of reference.  And I 
think there’s ample scope to come up with some sort of formula that 
means the ACT taxpayer feels that, you know, okay ACTTAB’s 40 
under-performing so we might be paying the industry a bit more than 
we’re getting from ACTTAB but that’s an issue for the government to go 
and fix up ACTTAB and get that on the right footing, and perhaps do 
whatever it needs to do there.  And hopefully those things will converge 
over time so that, you know, the taxpayer really, once you take in retained 45 
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earnings and various other things, isn’t particularly out of pocket and that 
ACTTAB can continue participating in pooling arrangements and 
continue the viability of its retail monopoly, and all of these other things 
that could be, you know, under serious challenge if funding was to stop at 
the end of the 4-year period.  So I think there’s perhaps enough - - -  5 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  One of the things we were trying to say in 
actual fact - and you’re right, we didn’t answer all the questions in the 
draft report and it’s a draft to try and bring out some things and allow for 
just this discussion - was that, you know, you’ve got the 4-year arranged 10 
within there and that’s sort of, you know, then going on beyond that there 
was a recognition, subject to what was happening nationally and so forth, 
that you might see some reduction in that effectively budget funding 
per se. 
 15 
 
Now, one of the things that sort of, you know, we might take forward in 
the final report is the issue of, you know, here’s various sort of scenarios 
that you could expect at the end of four years.  You could have it all sort 
of resolved and then it’s all being backed by a national arrangement.  It 20 
could be that ACTTAB’s back running again and you’re sort of drawing 
down from that and here’s the way it should go, and so forth.  But I guess 
what we were trying to say at that stage was that there might be a phase 
down on the budget side of things, not necessarily withdraw altogether 
from sort of, you know, government funding, but we were conscious of 25 
the budget sort of side of matters. 
 
Do you see any reason why it should continue with budget funding, as 
distinct from sort of funding through other mechanisms?  Is there a reason 
why you’d want to go that route? 30 
 
MR CORCORAN:  While we I guess remain in this no man’s land where 
ACTTAB has got this cloud over it and the national product market is not 
in place there doesn’t seem a lot of alternatives.  If we’re talking about a 
world in which, you know, we do return to some kind of product fee based 35 
thing where wagering operators are paying fees to the racing industry and 
that’s on a more sustainable footing then yes, the need for the budget link 
would presumably reduce.  There may be particular events the ACT 
Government might want to promote, like the major feature race meetings 
and that sort of thing. 40 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR CORCORAN:  But that would be heavily caveated upon the 
condition that you would then have returned to some more sort of market 45 
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base. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR CORCORAN:  You know, wagering and racing all sort of looking 5 
after themselves through that symbiotic kind of relationship of - - -  
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR CORCORAN:  And that’s obviously the preferred model longer term 10 
but the problem is, you know, the ACT can’t guarantee that that will 
happen.  There doesn’t seem to be any particular drive towards the 
national product market and on the ACTTAB side we all know that issue.  
So for the time being there doesn’t seem like there’s any other sort of real 
alternative. 15 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  In the context of those things would it make 
sense for the Commission to be saying in its final report that look, here are 
sort of two or three or four scenarios as to what might occur, and here’s 
what you should do under each of those scenarios?  So say for the sake of 20 
discussion it’s accepted that there needs to be some form of appropriate 
recovery of value from product fees.  So you know, not arguing against 
that so, you know, that has to come in some way.  At the moment it’s 
being done through budget line but previously it was done through the 
ACTTAB arrangement.  And then there’s three or four sort of scenarios 25 
which would involve sort of the rescue of ACTTAB or maybe the 
complete demise of it as the sort of, you know, world changes a national 
model or maybe a non-national model.  Here’s a sort of a series of 
formulae or principles at least anyhow that sort of might apply.  Does that 
sound like at least something to sort of try and address the uncertainty that 30 
government faces and we face, in terms of knowing just what’s going to 
happen over the next four or so years? 
 
MR CORCORAN:  I think if it’s presented in a way where you say if this 
set of events pans out with the High Court, or whatever, then this is what 35 
might happen, and here’s how it would it would work. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 
 
MR CORCORAN:  And if this happens then here is how it might happen.  40 
I think there can be some benefit in yes, setting out that sort of 
foresighting exercise.  It gives people a bit of a road map to follow, 
depending on how - because there is this uncertainty, depending on how 
the different things pan out.  Yes, it could certainly benefit in canvassing, 
you know, how you might respond under different scenarios.  The way in 45 
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which the draft report was structured it seemed to have, you know, 
withdraw funding.  So those points need to be perhaps separated to say if 
this sort of set of circumstances apply then you could do this.  And then if 
this set of circumstances apply then you could do this.  I think, you know, 
that could probably be quite instructive to the government, as long as they 5 
understand the risks also to, you know, different outcomes with the way in 
which they fund racing and what implications it might have for their 
government owned wagering operator. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Would it be appropriate in that process to 10 
include some form of carrot and stick mechanism to encourage the 
industry to look at other issues - without being sort of prescriptive for the 
sake of this discussion - but to encourage them to sort of continue to 
address the issue of the value of their product and the way it’s being put 
out there and, indeed, anything else they might do to sort of improve their 15 
overall position? 
 
MR CORCORAN:  I think, first, there’d need to be some evidence that 
they weren’t already doing that.  The impression I’ve had from the three 
clubs is that they’ve been doing a lot to change their scheduling, to 20 
improve the attractiveness of their product, to get on Sky Channel, to do 
numerous things to give themselves the best possible outcome from Race 
Fields Legislation and that already provides, you know, a strong incentive.  
They already have an incentive to try to maximise their non-racing related 
revenues through, you know, conventions and, you know, using the 25 
clubhouse for, you know, the other conference facilities at their sites, and 
so forth.  So whether that is, you know, a particular issue that you need in 
a carrot and stick to help further develop is something I’m not clear that 
there’s a problem you’re trying to solve there.   
 30 
I think the clubs are already very well aware of that and have been quite 
innovative.  Looking at the number of changes that the clubs have been 
making in their broadcast arrangements with Sky and all sorts of thing, I 
mean, it’d be hard to find any evidence that the industry hasn’t done a lot 
in recent years to be as appealing and as attractive to the wagering dollar 35 
as they can be.  So I wouldn’t just have carrot and some sticks for their 
own sake, I’d perhaps first want to make sure there was some evidence 
that they weren’t already doing it and already had adequate incentives 
under Race Fields Legislation to be doing that. 
 40 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes, fair enough.  Yes.  I think I’ve covered 
actually the things I wanted to cover and, as I said earlier at the beginning, 
I take on board sort of your references to citations and other comments 
and so forth, and we’ve got a copy of your slides and written submission I 
think you were putting together as well. 45 
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MR CORCORAN:  Yes, it broadly follows the points I’ve made in the 
slides. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  So we’ll make sure that we go through and 5 
pick up that.  Thank you very much for all those.  I value those. 
 
MR CORCORAN:  And thank you for the opportunity to come and 
present them today as well. 
 10 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  No, no, no, that’s what it’s all about 
and we appreciate that.  I think this latter discussion, just in terms of, you 
know, your point about coming up with - as the terms of reference do say 
and you’re quite right - an appropriate funding outcome which, you know, 
but given the different scenarios and the uncertainty we all face is one that 15 
sort of is the things that’s really taxing the Commission I think as a 
general observation.  The Commission’s not denying the fact that the 
industry should be appropriately recompensed for the product that is 
valued and provided.  I deliberately use the word “valued” in the sense 
that it implies a market sort of valuation, although I appreciate it’s not 20 
really there.  That the issue is really sort of, you know, how to sort of 
effectively sort of do that, given all the other sort of things that are sort of 
happening and the uncertainty in the limited ability I think we’ve got in 
the ACT to address those matters.   
 25 
So to some extent sort of I’m trying to sort of move the discussion and 
debate necessarily away from getting bogged down on some valuation 
issues on value added per se, notwithstanding the fact that we’ve been 
asked to comment upon that and we will go back and look at that and pick 
up your points and the points that Jerome previously made as well.  We’ll 30 
look closely at those.  But that the issue really is the one that you’ve 
touched upon and that is what is the appropriate sort of getting forward 
funding model and how best to sort of do that, and we’re not blind to that 
issue.  So rest assured that’s very much on our minds, but appreciate the 
comments and input on that. 35 
 
MR CORCORAN:  I also do appreciate that yes, there are a lot of 
uncertainties. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes. 40 
 
MR CORCORAN:  And there’s a lot of areas to canvass about what’s the 
best and most appropriate thing to do under each of those scenarios.  And 
perhaps it’s also good to suggest to the government that the issue be 
revisited in a few years’ time or when the High Court makes a decision, or 45 
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when an appropriate trigger point arises that, you know, this might have to 
be revisited.  And unfortunately, I mean, we’ve only had detailed 
negotiations over funding arrangements 12 months ago and looking at 
them again now, it seems to be an issue that it is a difficult one to come up 
with a solution that has a lot of permanency.  And anything that provides I 5 
guess a suite of options under different states that the world might pan out 
in probably going to be helpful to the government. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  Well look, thank you very much for 
that.  And so if we’re finished there thank you kindly. 10 
 
I’m assuming there’s nobody else who wishes to appear formally at this 
stage, that being so, I declare the public hearing closed and thank all for - 
sorry, I see a hand being raised. 
 15 
MR OLIVE:  (Off microphone) I don’t want to appear but could I just 
make a comment?  Sorry, my name’s Laurie Olive. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Well, if you’re going to make comment I’m 
afraid you have to appear and be on the register.  So you’re welcome to 20 
appear but you’ll need to come down and sort of be recorded in. 
 
MR OLIVE:  ...(inaudible)... I assisted the trainers with their submissions. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  No, no, please come down.  Come down 25 
and introduce yourself and you’re then on the record.  Thank you very 
much. 
 
MR OLIVE:  I just want to make one comment. 
 30 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  No, that’s okay, you’re more than 
welcome.  Please give your name and who you are, and so forth for the 
purposes of the transcript. 
 
MR OLIVE:  Okay, my name’s Laurie Olive and I assisted the 35 
thoroughbred trainers with their submission to the Inquiry.  My son Nick 
is the largest trainer in the ACT and my other son Tim appeared before 
you earlier today. 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Indeed. 40 
 
MR OLIVE:  Yes.  The thoroughbred trainers are probably the largest 
originators of revenue for the industry in the ACT.  There are 23 trainers, 
most of them professional and most of them full-time and we made the 
point in our submission and we’re not economists, but just a couple of 45 
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points, or two points.  The first one is that there seems to be a view all 
along about the discretionary leisure dollar and that if it’s not spent in 
racing it will be spent somewhere else.  We made the point in the trainers’ 
submission that it said there up to 75 per cent, but now I’ve done some 
more work and it’s probably closer to 80 per cent of the owners are from 5 
outside the ACT.  So 80 per cent of the revenue that comes in for horse 
income is from outside the ACT.  If you close down racing in the ACT 
that money is gone.   
 
The owners in Sydney and Brisbane and Adelaide, and wherever, are not 10 
going to spend dollars in the ACT if it’s not that way.  So any view that 
these are dollars that’ll just keep going round the ACT is just incorrect in 
that case, and that is a significant part of the revenue in the industry.  The 
trainers have real problems with the valuation, particularly when some of 
the trainers looked at their balance sheets and income statements and 15 
individual trainers represent 15 to 20 per cent of that number.  So one 
trainer could be 15 to 20 per cent of the industry.  They’re a bit flattered 
about they were that size part of the industry but clearly the number is an 
underestimation.   
 20 
The final point I’d like to make is that all of this labour is specialised.  
You close down racing and all of these employment positions are gone 
from the ACT.  The revenue’s gone because it’s all from outside the ACT, 
owners from outside.  And all the employment is very specialised.  My 
son has never wanted to do anything else.  He will never do anything else 25 
and he will take all his staff with him and probably relocate to Sydney.   
 
So the view that this is all money that’s just going round in the ACT is 
wrong.  This is money generated from outside, employing specialist staff 
who will leave if it’s gone, and therefore I would have thought, as 30 
someone who did Economics 1 45 years ago, that a multiplier effect in 
this case should be taken into account because these are dollars brought 
into the ACT and fed into the economy and then go around.  And they’re 
the only points I want.  I hope the trainers are happy that I make it on their 
behalves. 35 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Look, thank you very much for that.  Let 
me just say just before you go, one is not denying the fact that there is a 
value added generated by the industry.  We might have differences on 
numbers and we’ll go back and look at our numbers with the benefit now 40 
of input as part of this process.  That’s been good.  So no one’s denying 
that.  To some extent the terms, of reference have driven us to that because 
they’ve asked us to address that issue, but in some ways the sort of the 
terms of reference, the bigger issue is how to ensure that the value that is 
generated, whatever that number happens to be, is being adequately 45 
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recovered through whatever mechanism is used to take that from where 
that value is being consumed, through the wagering system and so forth. 
 
MR OLIVE:  I suppose my point is that dollars that are made from outside 
the ACT and brought in - - -  5 
 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes, I understand. 
 
MR OLIVE:  - - - have a different impact to dollars from inside the ACT. 
 10 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  No, I understand what you’re saying, 
yes.  Look, thank you very, very much.   
 
MR OLIVE:  Thank you. 
 15 
SENIOR COMMISSIONER:  I appreciate that.  I appreciate you making 
that comment.   
 
There being no other presentations and people wishing to appear I declare 
the formal hearing is closed and thank you very much for attending.  20 
Thank you. 
 
 
ADJOURNED [3.41 pm] 


